A )

To: Councillors D Edwards (Chair)

Peter Sloman

“'A R e a d i n CHIEF EXECUTIVE
‘k? g Civic Offices, Bridge Street,

Borough Council Reading RG1 2LU

Working better with you

@ 0118 937 3787

Direct: @ 0118 937 2368
e-mail:

julie.quarmby@reading.gov.uk

19 June 2019

Your contact is: Julie Quarmby - Committee Services

NOTICE OF MEETING - LICENSING APPLICATIONS SUB-COMMITTEE 2 - 27 JUNE 2019

A meeting of the Licensing Applications Sub-Committee 2 will be held on Thursday, 27 June
2019 at 9.30 am in the Council Chamber, Civic Offices, Bridge Street, Reading, RG1 2LU. The
Agenda for the meeting is set out below.

ACTION

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

(a) Councillors to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests
they may have in relation to the items for consideration;

(b) Councillors to declare whether they wish to speak on the
grounds they:

(i) Have submitted a relevant representation as an
interested party; or

(i1) Will be speaking on behalf of an interested party.

APPLICATION FOR THE REVIEW OF A PREMISES LICENCE -
BEST ONE

To consider an application for the review of a Premises
Licence in respect of Best One, 1A Nire Road, Caversham,
Reading, RG4 5LT.

WARDS Page No
AFFECTED

CAVERSHA 3 -108
M

CIVIC OFFICES EMERGENCY EVACUATION: If an alarm sounds, leave by the nearest fire exit quickly and calmly
and assemble on the corner of Bridge Street and Fobney Street. You will be advised when it is safe to re-enter
the building.

www.reading.gov.uk | facebook.com/ReadingCouncil | twitter.com/ReadingCouncil

DX 40124 Reading (Castle Street)



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 2

LICENSING ACT 2003 HEARING ON THURSDAY 27 JUNE 2019 @ 9.30 HOURS

APPLICATION FOR THE REVIEW OF A PREMISES LICENCE

1. Premises:

Mr Tajender Singh Parmar
Best One

1a Nire Road,

Caversham

Reading

RG1 5LT

2. Applicants Requesting Review:

lan Savill on behalf of the Chief Inspector of Weights and Measures

3. Grounds for Review

The Trading Standards team as a responsible authority under the Licensing Act 2003
and under the licensing objectives of prevention of crime and disorder, the
prevention of public nuisance, the protection of children from harm and public safety
make application for the review of the premises licence for Best One,1a Nire
Road, Caversham, Reading.

A combination of underage alcohol sales and a host of licence condition breaches
unearthed during inspections outlined below have led Reading Borough Council’s
Trading Standards to taking this final serious step in reviewing the premises licence.

25.10.2018 - The shop was visited during a Thames Valley Police under 18 test
purchase exercise, where a 17 year old was able to purchase alcohol from Mr Parmar,
the premises licence holder and designated premises supervisor without being asked
for proof of age. Less than four months later, the shop was visited again during a
second under 18 test purchase, conducted by Reading Borough Council, where a 15
year old was able to purchase alcohol without being asked for proof of age.

20.03.2019 - The shop was then visited during a joint inspection by a Licensing
Enforcement Officer and the Community Alcohol Partnership Officer. During this
inspection a number of items required attention. Therefore, the premises is failing in
its duty to promote the licensing objectives of the prevention of crime and disorder
and protecting children from harm.

The owner Mr Parmar, who has been the premises licence holder and designated
premises supervisor since September 2017. The issues contributing to this review
application began on the 25th October 2018 when Mr Parmer failed a Thames Valley
Police under age test purchase, when he sold alcohol to a 17 year old test purchaser
without asking for proof of age.

Following an initial failed test purchase failure by Mr Parmar, it was expected that he
take immediate steps to improve diligence by retraining, particularly around
challenging for proof of age in practice, recording refusals and ensuring suitable signage
is on display advising customers of the age verification policy. However, on the 18
February 2019, the shop failed a second test purchase, this time selling alcohol without
asking for proof of age from a 15 year old test purchaser.

Page 3 1



The time between the two failures was just under four months, and while this is outside
the offence of persistently selling alcohol to a person under the age of 18 (two failures
in three months) under s147A of the Licensing Act 2003, it was not by far. Guidance on
s147A of the Licensing Act 2003 and s182 Guidance states:

s147A Guidance

68. Amendments to the statutory guidance issued under section 182 of the 2003 Act
(following revisions through the Police Reform and Social Responsibility Act 2011)
recommend that where the offence of persistently selling alcohol to children has been
committed at a premises that licensing authorities should review the premises licence
with a view to considering revocation of the licence unless such a course is plainly not
appropriate. To help this process, the police and trading standards should ensure that
they notify licensing authorities about underage sales. This might be done through
regular meetings with the licensing authority or through forums on which the police,
trading standards and licensing authorities sit.

11.29 The Government recognises that the majority of licensed premises operate
responsibly and undertake due diligence checks on those who appear to be under the
age of 18 at the point of sale (or 21 and 25 where they operate a Challenge 21 or 25
scheme). Where these systems are in place, licensing authorities may wish to take a
proportionate approach in cases where there have been two sales of alcohol within very
quick succession of one another (e.g., where a new cashier has not followed policy and
conformed with a store’s age verification procedures). However, where persistent sales
of alcohol to children have occurred at premises, and it is apparent that those
managing the premises do not operate a responsible policy or have not exercised
appropriate due diligence, responsible authorities should consider taking steps to
ensure that a review of the licence is the norm in these circumstances. This is
particularly the case where there has been a prosecution for the offence under section
147A or a closure notice has been given under section 169A of the 2003 Act. In
determining the review, the licensing authority should consider revoking the licence if
it considers this appropriate.

To assist in determining general compliance with the Licensing Act 2003 objectives, and
to see if the business had been taking steps to make improvements following the test
purchase failures, an inspection of the premises took place on the 20th March 2019 by a
Licensing Officer of Reading Borough Council and the Community Alcohol Partnership
Officer. Several matters were noted including a lack of authorisations to sell alcohol, no
training records produced and no refusals log. These are practical issues and beyond
some of the more administrative defects often found in licensed premises.

The impact of the two failed test purchases does not appear to have landed with

Mr Parmar, the premises licence Holder and demonstrates that either there is wilful
neglect of his responsibilities under the Licensing Act 2003 or he is simply ignorant of
those obligations.

The lack of response from Mr Parmar to the two failures, demonstrated by the failings
found on the inspection on the 20th March 2019, suggest that Mr Parmar does not have
the prerequisites required for responsible retailing of alcohol and as such, the Trading
Standards Service recommends the revocation of the premises licence.

Licensing team/TVP/CAP inspections and interactions with the premises.
The Licensing Authority fully support the application for the review of the premises
licence for Best One, 1a Nire Road, Caversham, Reading.

Page 4




On 25.10. 2018 Thames Valley Police completed a test purchase process at Best One
during which Mr Parmar, the premises licence holder and designated premises supervisor
sold a bottle of Bulmers Cider abv 4.0% to an underage female. Mr Parmar was issued
with a fixed penalty notice for £90.00 for the offence committed which is understood to
have been paid.

On the 20.02.2019 a Licensing officer visited with the Council’s Community Alcohol
Partnership (CAB) Officer and found the following issues:

1) Part B of the premises licence was seen on display however it was an out of date copy
with the name of the former licence holder on which is a criminal offence.

2) Part A of the premises licence could not be produced. Two pages of Part A were found
on the wall but the other pages were missing which is a criminal offence.

3) A Section 57 notice was not displayed at the premises which is a criminal offence.
4) No staff could demonstrate that they had been authorised to sell alcohol.
Advisories

5) No training records could be produced for any member of staff.

6) No refusal book was in use at the premises.

7) No incident book was in use at the premises to record any incident that undermines
the promotion of the four licensing objectives.

8) Issues with operation of CCTV which assist in promoting the licensing objective of
preventing crime and disorder.

9) Staff did not know what the four licensing objectives were.

Legislation, Case Law and Licensing Act 2003 Guidance
It should be noted that paragraph 51 of the Licensing Act 2003 states that a review is of
the premises licence and not the premises licence holder. Therefore the activities that
have been carried on in accordance, or not in accordance, with a licence are what should
be considered when determining a review application.

It should also be noted that in the High Court case (case stated) of East

Lindsey DC v Abu Hanif it states:

That the licensing objectives require a prospective consideration of what is warranted in
the public interest having regard to the twin considerations of prevention and
deterrence.

Role of the designated premises licence holder(DPS)

The Licensing Act states the DPS is the person in day-to-day control of the licensed
premises. The DPS must be a personal licence holder. They are the person nominated
for the role by the premises licence holder and should be the person in day-to-day
control of the premises. The DPS is required where the sale of alcohol by retail takes
place and is the main point of accountability within premises where alcohol is sold.
They should be easily identifiable by the police or other authorities as the person in
charge of the premises. The role carries with it a great deal of responsibility. The DPS
plays a key role in actively promoting the licensing objectives and in implementing the

Page 5




measures stated in the operating schedule and must ensure that the premises operate
legally at all times.

The 2003 Act does not require a designated premises supervisor or any other personal
licence holder to be present on the premises at all times when alcohol is sold. However,
the designated premises supervisor and the premises licence holder remain responsible
for the premises at all times including compliance with the terms of the 2003 Act and
conditions attached to the premises licence to promote the licensing objectives.

Mandatory Conditions (noted on premises licence)

Age Verification Policy (commencement 01/10/2014)

1. The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that an
age verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale or
supply of alcohol.

2. The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure
that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age
verification policy.

3. The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be under
18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on
request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of
birth and either—

(a) a holographic mark, or

(b) an ultraviolet feature.

4. Date of receipt of application: 09.05.2019

A copy of the review application received is shown at Appendix PN-1

5. Date of closure of period for representations: 04.06.2019

6. Representations received:

During the 28 day consultation period, representations were received in regard to this review
application from;

Thames Valley Police which is shown at Appendix PN-2

The Licensing Team is shown at Appendix PN-3

Information provided by premises licence holder is shown at Appendix PN-4

Local residents (letters of support) are shown at Appendix PN-5

7. Background

The premises is located within a residential area, off the main Amersham Road, Caversham,
Reading.

Page 6 4




The premises licence holder and the designated premises supervisor is stated as:

Mr Tajender Singh Parmar and has held both these positions since 2017. (if the premises is
operated and managed on a day-to-day basis by the premises licence holder, then they may
appoint themselves as the DPS).

The premises currently has the benefit of a premises licence for the activities and hours
detailed below: A copy of the current licence LP2002114 is shown at Appendix PN-6

A plan showing the premises and surrounding area is shown at Appendix PN-7

Licensable Activities authorised by the Licence
Hours for the Sale by Retail of Alcohol - Off the Premises

Monday from 0800hrs until 2300hrs

Tuesday from 0800hrs until 2300hrs

Wednesday from 0800hrs until 2300hrs

Thursday from 0800hrs until 2300hrs

Friday from 0800hrs until 2300hrs

Saturday from 0800hrs until 2300hrs

Sunday from 1000hrs until 2230hrs

Good Friday from 0800hrs until 2230hrs Christmas Day from 1200hrs until 1500hrs and
1900hrs until 2230hrs

8. Licensing Objectives and Reading Borough Council’s Licensing Policy Statement

In determining this application the Licensing Authority has a duty to carry out its
functions with a view to promoting the four licensing objectives, which are as follows:-

e the prevention of crime and disorder;
e public safety

e the prevention of public nuisance

e the protection of children from harm

In determining this application the Licensing Authority must also have regard to the
representations received, the Licensing Authority’s statement of licensing policy and
any relevant section of the statutory guidance to licensing authorities.

9. Power of Licensing Authority on the determination of a Review

In determining the application the sub-committee can take such of the steps as it
considers appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives, which are:
1. take no further action

2. to issue formal warnings to the premises supervisor and/or premises licence
holder
3. modify the conditions of the licence (including, but not limited to hours of

operation of licensable activities)

exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence

remove the designated premises licence supervisor

suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months

. revoke the licence

Where the sub-committee takes a step mentioned in 3 or 4 above it may provide that the
modification or exclusion is to have effect for a period not exceeding three months or

Now A

Page 7 5




permanently.

Amended Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 April 2018

Licensing objectives and aims
1.2 The legislation provides a clear focus on the promotion of four statutory
objectives which must be addressed when licensing functions are undertaken.

1.3 The licensing objectives are:

» The prevention of crime and disorder;
« Public safety;

» The prevention of public nuisance; and
» The protection of children from harm.

1.4 Each objective is of equal importance. There are no other statutory licensing
objectives, so that the promotion of the four objectives is a paramount
consideration at all times.

Licensing Objectives and Aims:

1.5 However, the legislation also supports a number of other key aims and purposes.
These are vitally important and should be principal aims for everyone involved in
licensing work.

They include:

protecting the public and local residents from crime, anti-social
behaviour and noise nuisance caused by irresponsible licensed
premises;

Purpose
1.7 This Guidance is provided to licensing authorities in relation to the carrying out

of their functions under the 2003 Act. It also provides information to magistrates’
courts hearing appeals against licensing decisions and has been made widely
available for the benefit of those who run licensed premises, their legal advisers
and the general public. It is a key medium for promoting best practice, ensuring
consistent application of licensing powers across England and Wales and for
promoting fairness, equal treatment and proportionality.

1.8 The police remain key enforcers of licensing law. This Guidance does not bind
police officers who, within the parameters of their force orders and the law, remain
operationally independent. However, this Guidance is provided to support and assist
police officers in interpreting and implementing the 2003 Act in the promotion of the
four licensing objectives.

Legal status
1.9 Section 4 of the 2003 Act provides that, in carrying out its functions, a licensing

authority must ‘have regard to’ guidance issued by the Secretary of State under
section 182. This Guidance is therefore binding on all licensing authorities to that
extent. However, this Guidance cannot anticipate every possible scenario or set of
circumstances that may arise and, as long as licensing authorities have properly
understood this Guidance, they may depart from it if they have good reason to do so
and can provide full reasons. Departure from this Guidance could give rise to an appeal
or judicial review, and the reasons given will then be a key consideration for the

Page 8




courts when considering the lawfulness and merits of any decision taken.

1.10 Nothing in this Guidance should be taken as indicating that any requirement of
licensing law or any other law may be overridden (including the obligations placed on
any public authorities under human rights legislation). This Guidance does not in any
way replace the statutory provisions of the 2003 Act or add to its scope and licensing
authorities should note that interpretation of the 2003 Act is a matter for the courts.
Licensing authorities and others using this Guidance must take their own professional
and legal advice about its implementation.

Licensing policies

1.11 Section 5 of the 2003 Act requires a licensing authority to determine and publish a
statement of its licensing policy at least once every five years. The policy must be
published before it carries out any licensing functions under the 2003 Act.

1.12 However, determining and publishing a statement of its policy is a licensing
function and as such the authority must have regard to this Guidance when taking this
step. A licensing authority may depart from its own policy if the individual
circumstances of any case merit such a decision in the interests of the promotion of
the licensing objectives. But once again, it is important that it should be able to give
full reasons for departing from its published statement of licensing policy. Where
revisions to this Guidance are issued by the Secretary of State, there may be a period
of time when the licensing policy statement is inconsistent with the Guidance (for
example, during any consultation by the licensing authority). In these circumstances,
the licensing authority should have regard, and give appropriate weight, to this
Guidance and its own existing licensing policy statement.

5.3 Section 191 provides the meaning of “alcohol” for the purposes of the 2003 Act. It
should be noted that a wide variety of foodstuffs contain alcohol but generally in a
highly diluted form when measured against the volume of the product. For the
purposes of the 2003 Act, the sale or supply of alcohol which is of a strength not
exceeding 0.5 per cent ABV (alcohol by volume) at the time of the sale or supply in
question is not a licensable activity. However, where the foodstuff contains alcohol at
greater strengths, for example, as with some alcoholic jellies, the sale would be a
licensable activity.

5.4 The definition of alcohol was amended by the Policing and Crime Act 2017 to
include alcohol “in any state”. This is to make it clear that products such as powdered
and vaporised alcohol fall within the definition provided by the 2003 Act.

The role of responsible authorities

9.11 Responsible authorities under the 2003 Act are automatically notified of all new
applications. While all responsible authorities may make representations regarding
applications for licences and club premises certificates and full variation applications,
it is the responsibility of each responsible authority to determine when they have
appropriate grounds to do so.

The role of responsible authorities (eg Police)

9.12 Each responsible authority will be an expert in their respective field, and in some
cases it is likely that a particular responsible authority will be the licensing authority’s
main source of advice in relation to a particular licensing objective. For example, the
police have a key role in managing the night-time economy and should have good
working relationships with those operating in their local area5. The police should
usually therefore be the licensing authority’s main source of advice on matters relating
to the promotion of the crime and disorder licensing objective. However, any

Page 9




responsible authority under the 2003 Act may make representations with regard to any
of the licensing objectives if they have evidence to support such representations.
Licensing authorities must therefore consider all relevant representations from
responsible authorities carefully, even where the reason for a particular responsible
authority’s interest or expertise in the promotion of a particular objective may not be
immediately apparent. However, it remains incumbent on all responsible authorities to
ensure that their representations can withstand the scrutiny to which they would be
subject at a hearing.

Licensing authorities acting as responsible authorities

9.13 Licensing authorities are included in the list of responsible authorities. A similar
framework exists in the Gambling Act 2005. The 2003 Act does not require responsible
authorities to make representations about applications for the grant of premises
licences or to take any other steps in respect of different licensing processes. It is,
therefore, for the licensing authority to determine when it considers it appropriate to
act in its capacity as a responsible authority; the licensing authority should make this
decision in accordance with its duties under section 4 of the 2003 Act.

Hearings
9.31 Regulations governing hearings may be found on the www.legislation.gov.uk

website. If the licensing authority decides that representations are relevant, it must
hold a hearing to consider them. The need for a hearing can only be avoided with the
agreement of the licensing authority, the applicant and all of the persons who made
relevant representations. In cases where only ‘positive’ representations are received,
without qualifications, the licensing authority should consider whether a hearing is
required. To this end, it may wish to notify the persons who made representations and
give them the opportunity to withdraw those representations. This would need to be
done in sufficient time before the hearing to ensure that parties were not put to
unnecessary inconvenience.

9.38 In determining the application with a view to promoting the licensing objectives
in the overall interests of the local community, the licensing authority must give
appropriate weight to:

« the steps that are appropriate to promote the licensing objectives;

« the representations (including supporting information) presented by all the parties;

« this Guidance;

« its own statement of licensing policy.

Determining actions that are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing
objectives

9.42 Licensing authorities are best placed to determine what actions are appropriate
for the promotion of the licensing objectives in their areas. All licensing
determinations should be considered on a case-by-case basis. They should take into
account any representations or objections that have been received from responsible
authorities or other persons, and representations made by the applicant or premises
user as the case may be.

9.43 The authority’s determination should be evidence-based, justified as being
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives and proportionate to what it
is intended to achieve.

Designated premises supervisor
10.26 The 2003 Act provides that, where a premises licence authorises the supply of
alcohol, it must include a condition that no supply of alcohol may be made at a time

Page 10




when no designated premises supervisor has been specified in the licence or at a time
when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a personal licence or the
personal licence has been suspended.

10.27 The main purpose of the ‘designated premises supervisor’ as defined in the 2003
Act is to ensure that there is always one specified individual among these personal
licence holders who can be readily identified for the premises where a premises
licence is in force. That person will normally have been given day to day responsibility
for running the premises by the premises licence holder. The requirements set out in
relation to the designated premises supervisor and authorisation of alcohol sales by a
personal licence holder do not apply to community premises in respect of which a
successful application has been made to disapply the usual mandatory conditions in
sections 19(2) and 19(3) of the 2003 Act (see Chapter 4 of this Guidance).

10.28 The 2003 Act does not require a designated premises supervisor or any other
personal licence holder to be present on the premises at all times when alcohol is sold.
However, the designated premises supervisor and the premises licence holder remain
responsible for the premises at all times including compliance with the terms of the
2003 Act and conditions attached to the premises licence to promote the licensing
objectives.

Authorisation by personal licence holders

10.29 In addition, every premises licence that authorises the sale of alcohol must
require that every supply of alcohol under the premises licence must be made or
authorised by a person who holds a personal licence. This in most instances will be the
designated premises supervisor who must hold a valid personal licence. Any premises
at which alcohol is sold or supplied may employ one or more personal licence holders.
This does not mean that the condition should require the presence of the designated
premises supervisor or any other personal licence holder on the premises at all times.

10.30 Similarly, the fact that every supply of alcohol must be made under the
authority of a personal licence holder does not mean that only personal licence holders
can make sales or that they must be personally present at every transaction. A
personal licence holder may authorise members of staff to make sales of alcohol but
may be absent at times from the premises when a transaction takes place. However,
the responsible personal licence holder may not be able to escape responsibility for
the actions of anyone authorised to make sales.

10.31 “Authorisation” does not imply direct supervision by a personal licence holder of
each sale of alcohol. The question arises as to how sales can be authorised. Ultimately,
whether an authorisation has been given is a question of fact that would have to be
decided by the courts on the evidence before it in the course of a criminal
prosecution.

10.32 The following factors should be relevant in considering whether or not an
authorisation has been given:

« the person(s) authorised to sell alcohol at any particular premises should be clearly
identified;

« the authorisation should have specified the acts which may be carried out by the
person who is authorised to supply alcohol;

« there should be an overt act of authorisation, for example, a specific written
statement given to the individual who is authorised to supply alcohol; and

« there should be in place sensible arrangements for the personal licence holder to
monitor the activity that they have authorised on a reasonably regular basis.

Page 11




10.33 It is strongly recommended that personal licence holders give specific written
authorisations to individuals whom they are authorising to retail alcohol. A single
written authorisation would be sufficient to cover multiple sales over an unlimited
period. This would assist personal licence holders in demonstrating due diligence
should issues arise with enforcement authorities; and would protect employees if they
themselves are challenged in respect of their authority to sell alcohol.

10.34 Written authorisation is not a requirement of the 2003 Act and its absence alone
could not give rise to enforcement action.

10.35 It must be remembered that while the designated premises supervisor or a
personal licence holder may authorise other individuals to sell alcohol in their absence,
they are responsible for any sales that may be made. Similarly, the premises licence
holder remains responsible for ensuring that licensing law and licence conditions are
observed at the premises.

The Review process

11.1 The proceedings set out in the 2003 Act for reviewing premises licences and club
premises certificates represent a key protection for the community where problems
associated with the licensing objectives occur after the grant or variation of a
premises licence or club premises certificate.

11.2 At any stage, following the grant of a premises licence or club premises
certificate, a responsible authority, or any other person, may ask the licensing
authority to review the licence or certificate because of a matter arising at the
premises in connection with any of the four licensing objectives.

Powers of a licensing authority on the determination of a review

11.6 Where the relevant licensing authority does act as a responsible authority and
applies for a review, it is important that a separation of responsibilities is still
achieved in this process to ensure procedural fairness and eliminate conflicts of
interest. As outlined previously in Chapter 9 of this Guidance, the distinct functions of
acting as licensing authority and responsible authority should be exercised by different
officials to ensure a separation of responsibilities.

11.10 Where authorised persons and responsible authorities have concerns about
problems identified at premises, it is good practice for them to give licence holders
early warning of their concerns and the need for improvement, and where possible
they should advise the licence or certificate holder of the steps they need to take to
address those concerns. A failure by the holder to respond to such warnings is
expected to lead to a decision to apply for a review. Co-operation at a local level in
promoting the licensing objectives should be encouraged and reviews should not be
used to undermine this co-operation.

11.16 The 2003 Act provides a range of powers for the licensing authority which it may
exercise on determining a review where it considers them appropriate for the
promotion of the licensing objectives.

11.17 The licensing authority may decide that the review does not require it to take
any further steps appropriate to promoting the licensing objectives. In addition, there
is nothing to prevent a licensing authority issuing an informal warning to the licence
holder and/or to recommend improvement within a particular period of time. It is
expected that licensing authorities will regard such informal warnings as an important
mechanism for ensuring that the licensing objectives are effectively promoted and

Page 12

10



that warnings should be issued in writing to the licence holder.

11.18 However, where responsible authorities such as the police or environmental
health officers have already issued warnings requiring improvement - either orally or in
writing - that have failed as part of their own stepped approach to address concerns,
licensing authorities should not merely repeat that approach and should take this into
account when considering what further action is appropriate. Similarly, licensing
authorities may take into account any civil immigration penalties which a licence
holder has been required to pay for employing an illegal worker.

Reviews arising in connection with crime

11.24 A number of reviews may arise in connection with crime that is not directly
connected with licensable activities. For example, reviews may arise because of drugs
problems at the premises, money laundering by criminal gangs, the sale of contraband
or stolen goods, the sale of firearms, or the sexual exploitation of children. Licensing
authorities do not have the power to judge the criminality or otherwise of any issue.
This is a matter for the courts. The licensing authority’s role when determining such a
review is not therefore to establish the guilt or innocence of any individual but to
ensure the promotion of the crime prevention objective.

11.25 Reviews are part of the regulatory process introduced by the 2003 Act and they
are not part of criminal law and procedure. There is, therefore, no reason why
representations giving rise to a review of a premises licence need be delayed pending
the outcome of any criminal proceedings. Some reviews will arise after the conviction
in the criminal courts of certain individuals, but not all. In any case, it is for the
licensing authority to determine whether the problems associated with the alleged
crimes are taking place on the premises and affecting the promotion of the licensing
objectives. Where a review follows a conviction, it would also not be for the licensing
authority to attempt to go beyond any finding by the courts, which should be treated
as a matter of undisputed evidence before them.

11.26 Where the licensing authority is conducting a review on the grounds that the
premises have been used for criminal purposes, its role is solely to determine what
steps should be taken in connection with the premises licence, for the promotion of
the crime prevention objective. It is important to recognise that certain criminal
activity or associated problems may be taking place or have taken place despite the
best efforts of the licence holder and the staff working at the premises and despite
full compliance with the conditions attached to the licence. In such circumstances, the
licensing authority is still empowered to take any appropriate steps to remedy the
problems. The licensing authority’s duty is to take steps with a view to the promotion
of the licensing objectives and the prevention of illegal working in the interests of the
wider community and not those of the individual licence holder.

As such the current Secretary of State’s Section 182 Guidance pursuant to the
Licensing Act 2003 specifically deals with this in Section 11.29, and outlines the
following:

“The Government recognises that the majority of licensed premises operate
responsibly and undertake due diligence checks on those who appear to be under the
age of 18 at the point of sale (or 21 and 25 where they operate a Challenge 21 or 25
scheme). Where these systems are in place, licensing authorities may wish to take a
proportionate approach in cases where there have been two sales of alcohol within
very quick succession of one another (e.g., where a new cashier has not followed
policy and conformed with a store’s age verification procedures). However, where

Page 13

11




persistent sales of alcohol to children have occurred at premises, and it is apparent
that those managing the premises do not operate a responsible policy or have not
exercised appropriate due diligence, responsible authorities should consider taking
steps to ensure that a review of the licence is the norm in these circumstances”.

Furthermore the current Reading Borough Council statement of Licensing Policy
states:

1.2 The Council must have regard to the four licensing objectives when carrying out it’s
functions under the Licensing Act 2003. The Licensing Authority will also have regard to
other Council policies which have been introduced to tackle issues that may undermine
crime and disorder or any of the other licensing objectives. The Licensing Authority will
have regard to the contents of this policy as well as the Secretary of State’s Guidance
issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003. It may also depart from this policy
and the Secretary of State’s Guidance if there are exceptional circumstances and it is
appropriate to do so to promote the licensing objectives. If the Licensing Authority
departs from the Secretary of State’s Guidance it will give reasons as per paragraph 1.9
of that guidance.

1.3 The legislation also supports other key aims and purposes. These are outlined in
paragraph 1.5 of the guidance and should be principal aims for all parties involved in
licensing for the promotion of the licensing objectives. The licensing authority will have
regard to these key aims in it’s decision making. They are:

- Protecting the public and local residents from crime, anti social behaviour and noise
nuisance associated and caused by irresponsible licensed premises;

- Giving the police and licensing authorities the powers they need to effectively

manage and police the night time economy and take action against those premises that
are causing problems;

- Recognising the important role which pubs and other licensed premises play in our local
communities by minimising the regulatory burden on business, encouraging innovation
and supporting responsible premises;

- Providing a regulatory framework for alcohol which reflects the needs of local
communities and empowers local authorities to make and enforce decisions about the
most appropriate licensing strategies for their local area;

- Encouraging greater community involvement in licensing decisions and giving local
residents the opportunity to have their say regarding licensing decisions that may affect
them.

1.4 The Council has shaped it’s policies in line with the aims stated previously. The
Licensing Authority will also have regard to other policies, strategies and initiatives that
have been adopted to promote the licensing objectives. Such policies include a ‘Reducing
the Strength’ initiative to tackle the consumption of super strength beers and ciders
(above 6.5 of super strength products has been shown to undermine the licensing
objectives and cause anti social behaviour - as well as being damaging to health. Other
policies, initiatives and strategies which will be taken into account may include the
Council’s Drug and Alcohol policy as well as policies to do with general health and
wellbeing and public health. The

Council also places the highest priority when dealing with the potential exploitation of
children and vulnerable people - whether that is through their attendance at licensed
premises or their employment at those premises. The licensing authority would expect
all licence holders and everyone involved in licensing to take cognisance of these

Page 14 12



policies, strategies and initiatives.

1.5 This licensing policy aims to make Reading’s night time economy an economy for all.
A diverse range of responsibly run premises are to be encouraged. The licensing authority
wishes to discourage drunkenness and a move away from alcohol led vertical drinking
establishments. We would expect responsibly run premises to actively promote the
licensing objectives through promoting extra seating at their premises; instigating
effective dispersal from their premises at the conclusion of licensable activities and
engagement with the licensing authority and other responsible authorities in policies,
initiatives and strategies that promote Reading as a safe, healthy, diverse and vibrant
night time economy suitable for all.

1.6 The predominantly urban nature of Reading as a town means that an appropriate
balance needs to be struck between the needs of local business and the needs of local
residents. This licensing policy seeks to encourage all stakeholders to engage in the
licensing process so that the needs of all can be taken into account and issues dealt with
in a spirit of partnership and cooperation.

Crime and Disorder Act 1998

3.2 This Act requires local authorities and other bodies to consider crime and disorder
reduction. Section 17 of the Act states that it shall be the duty of each authority, to
exercise its various functions with due regard to the likely effect of the exercise of those
functions on, and the need to do all that is reasonably can to prevent, crime and disorder
in its area (including anti social and other behaviour adversely affecting the local
environment). This links specifically with the licensing objective of prevention of crime
and disorder and the licensing authority will take into account all reasonable measures
that actively promote this licensing objective.

8.17 The Authority carries out joint test purchasing operations with other responsible
authorities such as Thames Valley Police and Trading Standards as well as the Community
Alcohol Partnership officer. Test purchasing operations will also be carried out to ensure
that licensed premises are adhering to their age verification policy as per the mandatory
conditions attached to all licences that sell alcohol.

8.18 Where a licensed premises is found to have sold alcohol to a child under the age of
18 years of age then the authority will look to take immediate remedial action against
that premises and that licence holder. Similarly, if a premises is found to be selling
alcohol in breach of it’s licence conditions or the mandatory conditions, those are
offences which the authority deems to be particularly serious and will look to take action
to prevent a reoccurrence.

9. Enforcement - General Principles

9.1 It is the responsibility under the Act for all responsible authorities; licence holders
and prospective licence holders to actively promote the four licensing objectives. The
Council along with partner agencies, has a wider responsibility to protect the public as a
whole and prevent crime, harm or nuisance from taking place.

9.2 The Authority will carry out it’s licensing functions with a view to actively promoting
the licensing objectives and maintaining public safety. This applies to the dual role the
licensing authority has both as the administrator of the process and as a responsible
authority.

9.3 The Licensing Authority has previously and will continue to work with other
responsible authorities and partner agencies in order to ensure that the licensing

Page 15 13



objectives are promoted and that a consistent and joined up approach is taken to
enforcement across Reading.

9.4 Reading Borough Council and Thames Valley Police work in partnership when carrying
out work that involves licensed premises and any matter that undermines the licensing
objectives. The Authority and Thames Valley Police also work in partnership with
colleagues in the Home Office Immigration Enforcement team and Trading Standards on a
variety of issues including the prevention and detection of illegal working in licensed
premises and issues surrounding super strength alcoholic products and responsible
alcohol retailing.

9.5 The Licensing Authority, Trading Standards and Thames Valley Police have
established a regular partnership group to discuss and identify issues arising from
licensed premises and to decide what, if any, enforcement action should be taken
against any such premises. The partnership group is often attended by other colleagues
so as to provide the widest possible, joined up approach to tackling issues in relation to
licensed premises. It is the authority’s view that issues are best tackled, whenever
practicable, through this joined up approach as it provides consistency and a best
practice approach to dealing with licensing issues.

9.8 It is the Authority’s view that the sale of alcohol or other age restricted products to
children is completely unacceptable. The Authority will work with colleagues in Thames
Valley Police, Trading Standards and the Community Alcohol Partnership to regularly
carry out test purchases on licensed premises. The sale of alcohol to children is an
offence under the Act. Any premises or licence holder that is found to be selling alcohol
to children is likely to have enforcement taken against them.

9.9 A further offence of persistently selling alcohol to children has also been inserted
into the Licensing Act 2003. This is defined as alcohol being sold to a child on two
occasions within a period of three consecutive months. Any premises that is found to be
persistently selling alcohol to children will, as per the Secretary of State’s Guidance at
paragraph 11.30, have that premises licence reviewed with a view to having it revoked.

9.10 As well as test purchasing exercises being undertaken to establish whether alcohol is
being sold to children, test purchasing exercises will also be carried out to ascertain
whether a premises is adhering to it’s age verification policy. Most licences will have a
condition stating what the premises’ age verification policy should be. Further, the
mandatory conditions on all premises licences that authorise the sale of alcohol clearly
state that each premises must implement an age verification policy and that all sales
must be carried out in accordance with that policy. Therefore, if a premises operates a
Challenge 25 policy and only accepts certain photographic ID, then they will be tested to
see that this is being done. It is the Authority’s view that a Challenge 25 age verification
policy should be adopted as best practice with only nationally accredited photo ID being
acceptable as proof of age. Any premises found to be selling alcohol not in accordance
with their own adopted age verification policy will be committing an offence which could
lead to enforcement action being taken to prevent a reoccurrence.

Inspections

9.6 The Authority will carry out inspections at all premises where a premises licence is in
force. Additionally, an inspection may also be carried out where an application for a
grant, variation or review is received by the Authority to ascertain the likely effect of
granting any application on the promotion of the licensing objectives. Inspections may
also be carried out if the Authority or one of our partner agencies/responsible authorities
are made aware of complaints or other incidents that undermine the promotion of the

Page 16 14



licensing objectives.

9.7 Inspections will be carried out solely by the Licensing Authority or in conjunction
with other partners such as Thames Valley Police, Home Office Immigration Enforcement
and Trading Standards.

Test Purchasing

9.8 It is the Authority’s view that the sale of alcohol or other age restricted products to
children is completely unacceptable. The Authority will work with colleagues in Thames
Valley Police, Trading Standards and the Community Alcohol Partnership to regularly
carry out test purchases on licensed premises. The sale of alcohol to children is an
offence under the Act. Any premises or licence holder that is found to be selling alcohol
to children is likely to have enforcement taken against them.

9.9 A further offence of persistently selling alcohol to children has also been inserted
into the Licensing Act 2003. This is defined as alcohol being sold to a child on two
occasions within a period of three consecutive months. Any premises that is found to be
persistently selling alcohol to children will, as per the Secretary of State’s Guidance at
paragraph 11.30, have that premises licence reviewed with a view to having it revoked.

9.10 As well as test purchasing exercises being undertaken to establish whether alcohol is
being sold to children, test purchasing exercises will also be carried out to ascertain
whether a premises is adhering to it’s age verification policy. Most licences will have a
condition stating what the premises’ age verification policy should be. Further, the
mandatory conditions on all premises licences that authorise the sale of alcohol clearly
state that each premises must implement an age verification policy and that all sales
must be carried out in accordance with that policy. Therefore, if a premises operates a
Challenge 25 policy and only accepts certain photographic ID, then they will be tested to
see that this is being done. It is the Authority’s view that a Challenge 25 age verification
policy should be adopted as best practice with only nationally accredited photo ID being
acceptable as proof of age. Any premises found to be selling alcohol not in accordance
with their own adopted age verification policy will be committing an offence which could
lead to enforcement action being taken to prevent a reoccurrence.

9.11 Further offences in relation to children and alcohol are listed at paragraph 8.15 of
this policy and licence holders are expected to be aware of these and to undertake due
diligence to prevent these serious crimes occurring. All premises that sell alcohol are
expected to have robust systems in place to ensure alcohol is not sold to children.

Enforcement Approach

9.12 Where offences are found to have been carried out on licensed premises, the
Authority has a number of enforcement options available to it. The Authority will work
with partner agencies to determine which enforcement option is appropriate for the
promotion of the licensing objectives. The seriousness of the offences found will be
taken into consideration as well as any previous issues of non compliance or criminality
that have taken place at the licensed premises.

9.13 The enforcement options available to the Authority are wide-ranging. The Authority
may consider, for example, that a letter detailing the issues found during an inspection
followed by a period of time to rectify them is sufficient to promote the licensing
objectives. Similarly, the Authority may consider that the breaches are sufficiently
serious to warrant an immediate performance meeting with a licence holder so that a
discussion can take place about the adequacy of the processes in place at the premises.
This could, for example, lead to recommendations being put to the licence holder to

Page 17 15



implement much more robust conditions and processes to avoid a repeat of the breaches
found. The authority may also decide to prosecute relevant persons for offences being
carried out on licensed premises. Licence holders should note that the authority can take
one or more of these options available to it at the same time for the same offences
should it be deemed appropriate to do so.

9.15 Licensed premises that have a history of non-compliance over a period of months
and years and/or incidents of serious crime taking place at that premises, will likely find
that the Authority will initiate a review with a view to asking for the licence to be
considered for revocation.

9.16 When considering what enforcement action to take, the Authority will always
consider what is the most appropriate and proportionate step to promote the licensing
objectives. The Authority is not required to wait for offences to occur before deciding it
needs to take appropriate action. Case law - notably East Lindsey District Council v Abu
Hanif - states that the promotion of the licensing objectives requires a prospective
consideration of what is warranted in the public interest having regard to the twin
considerations of prevention and deterrence. Similarly, the Secretary of State’s Guidance
to the Licensing Act makes clear that there is no requirement for the Authority to wait
for the outcome of any criminal proceedings before it initiates any enforcement action.
This is the approach that the Authority will take when considering what, if any, action
should be taken when condition breaches and other criminal activity is found at licensed
premises.

9.18 Any responsible authority or person defined as ‘any other person’ within the Act can
initiate a review of any premises licence or club premises certificate. When another
responsible authority or other person initiates a review, the Authority will deal with it as
the Licensing Authority and may also wish to make representation in support of the
review within it’s role as a responsible authority if it has relevant information.

9.19 Licensed premises that are found to be compliant and which do little to undermine
the promotion of the licensing objectives will be deemed as a much lower risk than
premises that breach conditions, carry on serious criminal activity and generate
complaints.

9.20 The Authority shall endeavour to work with licence holders and applicants where it
is believed that steps can be taken to rectify issues identified at licensed premises.
However it can not merely continue that approach if it has previously failed or the
licence holder is unresponsive. It is the responsibility of all licence holders and
responsible authorities to ensure that licensed premises are not undermining the
promotion of the licensing objectives and that licensable activity is carried out lawfully.
The Authority will work with partners to determine what action is appropriate for each
premises where issues are discovered. Each premises and the action required for each
will be assessed on it’s own individual merits.

9.21 The Council, in determining a review application can take the following steps in
order to promote the licensing objectives:

- modify the conditions on the licence

- exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence

- remove the designated premises supervisor

- suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months

- revoke the premises licence

Page 18 16



Summary
The offences clearly outlined in this review application are particularly serious.

The sale of alcohol to children has serious impacts on society and can in certain
circumstances lead to child crime exploitation, anti-social behaviour and negative
impacts on the health and well-being of children. The lack of response of Mr
Parmar, the premises licence holder and designated premises supervisor to the two
underage test purchase failures and by the failings found during the inspection
suggest that Mr Parmer does not have the prerequisites required for responsible
retailing of alcohol. The guidance is clear on this matter, if a premises is found to
be selling alcohol in breach of it’s licence conditions or the mandatory conditions,
those are offences which the authority deems to be particularly serious and will
look to take action to prevent a reoccurrence, and as such, the Responsible
Authority recommend the revocation of the premises licence.

Case law
High Court case (case stated) of East Lindsey DC v Abu Hanif

Lic/bestonereview/27.06.2019b/pn

Page 19

17



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX PN-1
Classification: OFFICIAL-SENSITIVE

XA i
&€ Reading
Working better with you

Application for the review of a premises licence or club premises certificate under the
Licensing Act 2003

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST

Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form.

If you are completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure
that your answers are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if necessary.
You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for vour records.

I, lan Savill, on behalf of The Chief Inspector of Weights and Measures
(Insert name of applicant)

apply for the review of a premises licence under section 51 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the
premises described in Part 1 below

Part 1 — Premises or club premises details

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description

la Nire Road

Caversham

Reading

Post town Post code (if known)
Reading RG45LT

Name of premises licence holder or club holding club premises certificate (if known)

Mr Tajender Singh Parmar

Number of premises licence or club premises certificate (if known)

LP2001396

Part 2 - Applicant details

lam
Please tick v yes

1) an individual, body or business which is not a responsible

authority (please read guidance note 1. and complete (A) ]
or (B) below)

2) aresponsible authority (please complete (C) below) X

3) amember of the club to which this application relates dJ
{please complete (A) below)

Classification: OFFICIAL-SENSITIVE
Page 21



Classification: OFFICIAL-SENSITIVE

£% Reading

Borough Council
Working better with you

(A) DETAILS OF INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (fill in as applicable)

Please tick v yes

Me [ Mrs [ Miss ]

Surname

Ms ]

First names

Other title
(for example. Rev)

[ am 18 years old or over

Please tick v yes

O

Current postal
address if
different from
premises
address

Post town

Post Code

Daytime contact telephone number

E-mail address
(optional)

(B) DETAILS OF OTHER APPLICANT

Name and address

Telephone number (if any)

E-mail address (optional)

Classification: OFFICIAL-SENSITIVE

Page 22




Classification: OFFICIAL-SENSITIVE
‘.!A i

Borough Council
Working better with you

(C) DETAILS OF RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY APPLICANT

Name and address

lan Savill on behalf of

The Chief Inspector of Weights and Measures
Reading Borough Council

Civic Offices

Bridge Street

Reading

RGI1 2LU

Telephone number (if any)
01189372477

E-mail address (optional)
ian.savilli@reading.gov.uk

This application to review relates to the following licensing objective(s)

Please tick one or more boxes v/
1) the prevention of crime and disorder
2) public safety
3) the prevention of public nuisance
4) the protection of children from harm

([

Classification: OFFICIAL-SENSITIVE
Page 23




Classification: OFFICIAL-SENSITIVE

r L
&b Reading

Please state the ground(s) for review (please read guidance note 2)

The shop was visited during a Thames Valley Police under 18 test purchase exercise. where a 17
year old was able to purchase alcoho!l without being asked for proof of age. Less than four months
later, the shop was visited again during a second under 18 test purchase. conducted by Reading
Borough Council, where a 13 year old was able to purchase alcohol without being asked for proof
of age.

The shop was then visited during a joint inspection by a Licensing Enforcement Officer and the
Community Alcohol Partnership Officer. During this inspection a number of items required
attention as outlined in the confirmation letter. dated 1™ April 2019.

Therefore. the premises is failing in its duty to promote the licensing objectives of the prevention
of crime and disorder and protecting children from harm.

Classification: OFFICIAL-SENSITIVE
Page 24




Classification: OFFICIAL-SENSITIVE
‘!ﬁ i

Borough Council
Working better with you

Please provide as much information as possible to support the application (please read
guidance note 3)

The premises licence holder has been in place since September 2017. The issues contributing to
this review application began on the 25" October 2018 when the Premises Licence Holder failed a
Thames Valley Police under age test purchase. when he sold alcohol to a 17 year old test
purchaser without asking for proof of age.

Following an initial test purchase failure, it is expected that the business takes immediate steps to
improve diligence by retraining, particularly around challenging for proof of age in practice.
recording refusals and ensuring suitable signage is on display advising customers of the age
veritication policy. However. on the 18" February 2019. the shop failed a second test purchase.
this time selling alcohol without asking for proof of age from a 15 year old test purchaser.

The time between the two failures was just under four months, and while this is outside the
offence of persistently selling alcohol to a person under the age of 18 (two failures in three
months) under s147A of the Licensing Act 2003. it was not by far. Guidance on sI47A of the
Licensing Act 2003 and s182 Guidance states:

s147A Guidance

68. Amendments to the statutory guidance issued under section 182 of the 2003 Act (following
revisions through the Police Reform and Social Responsibilit: Act 2011) recommend that where
the offence of persistently selling alcohol to children has been committed at a premises that
licensing authorities should review the premises licence with u view to considering revocation of
the licence unless such a course is plainly not appropriate. To help this process, the police and
trading stundards should ensure that they notifv licensing authorities about underage sales. This
might be done through regular meetings with the licensing authoritne or through forums on which
the police, trading stundards and licensing authorities sit.

s182 Guidance

11.29 The Government recognises that the majority of licensed premises operate responsibly and
undertake due diligence checks on those who appear to be under the uge of 18 at the point of sale
(or 21 and 25 where they operate a Challenge 21 or 25 scheme). Where these systems are in
place, licensing authorities may wish to take u proportionate approach in cuses where there have
been nvo sales of alcohol within very quick succession of one another (e.g., where a new cashier
has not followed policy and conformed with a store’s age verification procedures). However,
where persistent sales of alcohol to children have occurred at premises. and it is apparent that
those managing the premises do not operate a responsible policy or have not exercised
appropriate due diligence, responsible authoritics should consider tuking steps to ensure that u
review of the licence is the norm in these circumstances. This is particularly the cuse where there
has been a prosecution for the offence under section 1474 or a closure notice has been given
under section 1694 of the 2003 Act. In determining the review, the licensing authoritv should
consider revoking the licence if it considers this appropriate.

To assist in determining general compliance with the Licensing Act 2003 objectives, and to see if
the business had been taking steps to make improvements following the test purchase failures, an
inspection of the premises took place on the 20" March 2019 by a Licensing Officer of Reading
Borough Council and the Community Alcohol Partnership Ofticer. Several matters were noted
including a lack of authorisations to sell alcohol. no training records produced and no refusals log.
These are practical issues and beyond some of the more administrative defects often found in
licensed premises. A letter was sent (attached at Appendix | (minor moditications to
paragraphing to hold it onto two pages)) by the Licensing Officer on the 1™ April 2019 to the
Premises Licence Holder advising of the shortcomings and how to remedy them.

The impact of the two failed test purchases does not appear to have landed with the Premises

Classification: OFFICIAL-SENSITIVE
Page 25




Classification: OFFICIAL-SENSITIVE
T i

Borough Council
Working better with you

Licence Holder and demonstrates that either there is wilful neglect of his responsibilities under the
Licensing Act 2003 or he is simply ignorant of those obligations.

The shop is situated in an area of high deprivation (in 20% of most deprived UK- Indices of
Deprivation 2015) and this brings with it its own challenges. A shop that is seen as an easy target
will eventually generate complaints from local residents and the resulting change in policy that the
shop takes could lead to inflammatory situations. Disgruntled customers, who may be used to
being served, are refused could potentially lead to acts of violence or abuse of the shop statt and
other customers.

The lack of response of the PLH to the two failures. demonstrated by the failings found on the
inspection on the 20™ March 2019. suggest that PLH does not have the prerequisites required for
responsible retailing of alcohol and as such. the Trading Standards Service recommends the
revocation of the premises licence.

Classification: OFFICIAL-SENSITIVE
Page 26




Classification: OFFICIAL-SENSITIVE

£ Readin
V.iy Borough Councilg
Working better with you
Please tick v yes
Have you made an application for review relating to the O
premises before

[f yes please state the date of that application Day Month  Year

LIT T T T T T]

If you have made representations before relating to the [;i:-em_isé-é please state what they were
and when you made them

Classification: OFFICIAL-SENSITIVE
Page 27



Classification: OFFICIAL-SENSITIVE

&% Reading

Borough Council
Working better with you
Please tick v Yes
e | have sent copies of this form and enclosures to the responsible authorities X

and the premises licence holder or club holding the club premises certificate.
as appropriate

o [ understand that if I do not comply with the above requirements my X
application will be rejected

IT IS AN OFFENCE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003, TO MAKE
A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION. THOSE
WHO MAKE A FALSE STATEMENT MAY BE LIABLE ON SUMMARY CONVICTION
TO A FINE OF ANY AMOUNT.

Part 3 — Signatures (please read guidance note 4)

Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent (please read
guidance note 3). If signing on behalf of the applicant please state in what capacity.

Capacity  Principal Trading Standards Officer on behalf of the Chief Inspector of Weights
and Measures

Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for correspondence
associated with this application (please read guidance note 6)

Post town Post Code

Telephone number (if any)

If you would prefer us to correspond with you using an e-mail address your e-mail address
(optional)

Classification: OFFICIAL-SENSITIVE
Page 28




Classification: OFFICIAL-SENSITIVE

KA i
€D Reading

APPENDIX 1

rA 1 Alison Bell
£% Reading

Borough Council Neighbourhood Services
Working better with you Civic Offices, Bridge St, Reading, RG1 2LU
. _ ® 0118 937 3787
Mr Tajender Singh Parmar .
Best One Our Ref:EVU 054001
1a Nire Road i i
Caversham e-mail: richard.french@reading.gov.uk
Reading
RG15LT 1% April 2019
L _J
Your contact is: Mr Richard French, Licensing
Dear Sirs

Licensing Act 2003

Premises Licence Number: LP2001396

Premises: Best One

Premises Address: 1a Nire Road, Caversham, Reading

On the 20™ March 2019 | visited your premises with my colleague Tessa
Brunsden who is the Council’s Community Alcohol Partnership Officer to
ensure you are complying with the above premises licence and advise on any
matters that may arise during the inspection. The visit was also to see what,
if any, actions had been taken to prevent alcohol being sold to children as
per the two test purchase failures on 25" October 2018 and 18™ February
2019. During my inspection, | found a number of items that require your
attention as outlined below:

1) Part B of the premises licence was on display however it was an out of
date copy with the former licence holder on. Please ensure that the correct
copy of Part B is displayed. If you require a copy of Part B then please
contact the Licensing team.

2) Part A of the premises licence could not be produced. Two pages of Part
A were found on the wall but the other pages were missing. Part A should
not be on display. It should be kept securely in a folder or somewhere that
can be accessed. If you require a copy of Part A then please contact the
Licensing team.

3) No Section 57 notice could be located at the premises. This notice states
where Part A of the premises licence is kept and who has custody of it.
Please ensure this is rectified.

Classification: OFFICIAL-SENSITIVE

Page 29

Director of Environment and



Classification: OFFICIAL-SENSITIVE
‘!ﬁ i

Borough Council
Working better with you

4) No staff could demonstrate that they had been authorised to sell alcohol.
You should be aware that the mandatory condition attached to your licence
states that all sales of alcohol must be made by or authorised by a personal
licence holder. The Guidance to the Licensing Act at paragraph 10.33 states
that the best way to authorise staff is individually and in writing. Please
ensure that all staff are correctly authorised - preferably in writing.

Advisories

5) No training records could be produced for any member of staff. Training
should cover the premises age verification policy; how to carry out and log
refusals; how to identify persons who may be intoxicated, knowledge of the
four licensing objectives, etc. It is concerning that given the test purchase
failures that staff have not undertaken any written training which has been
documented. We would expect staff to be trained within any business as a
matter of best practice. You are therefore strongly advised to ensure that
your staff are trained in their responsibilities in relation to alcohol sales.

6) No refusal book was in use at the premises. Again, we would expect all
of f licences in Reading to be using a refusal book or electronic refusal log as
a matter of best practice - particularly premises that have failed test
purchases. You are strongly recommended to implement the use of a refusal
book at the premises.

7) No incident book was in use at the premises. You are recommended to
use an incident book to record any incident that undermines the promotion
of the four licensing objectives.

8) It could not be demonstrated how long your CCTV recorded images for as
the staff member was unable to use it. Please ensure that your CCTV system
records for 31 days and provides coverage of the entire premises. This will

assist in promoting the licensing objective of preventing crime and disorder.

9) Staff did not know what the four licensing objectives were. Please ensure
these are refreshed as it is important that they are actively promoted.

Please ensure all of the above points (points 1-4) are rectified immediately.
You are strongly recommended to implement points 5-9 as well as we have
significant concerns over the sale of alcohol and lack of due diligence at the
premises.

If you have any questions in relation to this letter then please contact me.
Yours faithfully

Mr Richard French
Licensing Enforcement Officer

Classification: OFFICIAL-SENSITIVE
Page 30



APPENDIX PN-2

Narancic, Peter

From: Wheeler Simon <Simon.Wheeler@thamesvalley.pnn.police.uk>

Sent: 03 June 2019 16:04

To: Licensing; Licensing

Cc: Smyth Declan

Subject: Best One, Thames Valiey Police Representation

Attachments: Best One 1A Nire Road TVP repreentation 03-06-19.docx; Best one APPENDIX

TVP1.docx; Best one APPENDIX TVP2.docx; Best One APPENDIX TVP3.docx

This is an EXTERNAL EMAIL. STOP. THINK betore vou CLICK links or OPEN attachments.

Please find attached Thames Valley Police representation in support of the review application
regarding Best One, 1A Nire Road, Reading.

Regards

Police Constable 5787 Simon Wheeler | Neighbourhood Supervisor | Reading Town Centre | Reading
LPA | Thames Valley Police | Advanced Practitioner Licensing

Address: Thames Valley Police, Reading Police Station, Castle Street, Reading, RG1 7TH
Email simon.wheeler@thamesvalley.pnn.police.uk | Maobile 07973 231273 Switchboard 101

e THAMES VALLEY

POLICE

e R L s s A e e e s e s s sss i issssstlssd

Thames Valley Police currently use the Microsoft Office 2007 suite of applications. Please be aware of this if you
intend to include an attachment with your email. This communication contains information which is confidential and
may also be privileged. Any views or opinions expressed are those of the originator and not necessarily those of
Thames Valley Police. It is for the exclusive use of the addressee(s). If you are not the intended recipient(s) please
note that any form of distribution, copying or use of this communication or the information in it is strictly prohibited and
may be unlawful. If you have received this communication in error please forward a copy to:

informationsecurity@ thamesvalley.pnn.police.uk and to the sender. Please then delete the e-mail and destroy any
copies of it. Thank you.

P ettt e e e s T RS E e s s s2ss sl s

Click here to report this email as spam.

Page 31




THAMES VALLEY POLICE

Division/Station : Reading Licensing Dept

From: PC 5787 Simon Wheeler To: Reading Licensing Authority
Ref: Best One Premises Licence Number LP2001396 Date : 3" June 2019
Tel.No.

Subject :

Supportive review representation

I PC Simon Wheeler on behalf of the Chief Officer of Police for Thames Valley wish to provide this
representation in support of the review process relating to Best One. 1A Nire Road, Reading,
Berkshire.

Our representation is based on this premises failure to uphold the licensing objectives and more
specifically the protection of children from harm by committing offences in relation to the sale of
alcohol to persons under the age of 18, as well as a failure to provide sufficient training, authoristaions
and refusals logs..

The sale of alcohol to children has serious impacts on society and can in certain circumstances lead to
Child Crime Exploitation, anti-social behaviour and negative impacts on the health and well being of
children.

As such the current Secretary of State’s Section 182 Guidance pursuant to the Licensing Act 2003
specifically deals with this in Section 11.29, and outlines the following:

“The Government recognises that the majority of licensed premises operate responsibly and
undertake due diligence checks on those who appear to be under the age of 18 at the point of
sale (or 21 and 25 where they operate a Challenge 21 or 25 scheme). Where these systems
are in place, licensing authorities may wish to take a proportionate approach in cases where
there have been two sales of alcohol within very quick succession of one another (e.g., where
a new cashier has not followed policy and conformed with a store’s age verification
procedures). However, where persistent sales of alcohol to children have occurred at
premises, and it is apparent that those managing the premises do not operate a responsible
policy or have not exercised appropriate due diligence, responsible authorities should
consider taking steps to ensure that a review of the licence is the norm in these
circumstances”.

Furthermore the current Reading Borough Council statement of licensing policy states:

8.17 The Authority carries out joint test purchasing operations with other responsible
authorities such as Thames Valley Police and Trading Standards as well as the Community
Alcohol Partnership officer. Test purchasing operations will also be carried out to ensure
that licensed premises are adhering to their age verification policy as per the mandatory
conditions attached to all licences that sell alcohol.

8.18 Where a licensed premises is found to have sold alcohol to a child under the age of 18
years of age then the authority will look to take immediate remedial action against that
premises and that licence holder. Similarly, if a premises is found to be selling alcohol in
breach of it’s licence conditions or the mandatory conditions, those are offences which the
authority deems to be particularly serious and will look to take action to prevent a reoccurrence.

9.8 It is the Authority’s view that the sale of alcohol or other age restricted products to
children is completely unacceptable. The Authority will work with colleagues in Thames
Valley Police, Trading Standards and the Community Alcohol Partnership to regularly carry
out test purchases on licensed premises. The sale of alcohol to children is an offence under
the Act. Any premises or licence holder that is found to be selling alcohol to children is likely
to have enforcement taken against them.

Page 32
GEN46-LAN(§/95)




GEN46-LAN(5/95)

9.9 A further offence of persistently selling alcohol to children has also been inserted into
the Licensing Act 2003. This is defined as alcohol being sold to a child on two occasions
within a period of three consecutive months. Any premises that is found to be persistently
selling alcohol to children will, as per the Secretary of State’s Guidance at paragraph 11.30,
have that premises licence reviewed with a view to having it revoked.

9.10 As well as test purchasing exercises being undertaken to establish whether alcohol is
being sold to children, test purchasing exercises will also be carried out to ascertain whether
a premises is adhering to it's age verification policy. Most licences will have a condition
stating what the premises’ age verification policy should be. Further, the mandatory
conditions on all premises licences that authorise the sale of alcohol clearly state that each
premises must implement an age verification policy and that all sales must be carried out in
accordance with that policy. Therefore, if a premises operates a Challenge 25 policy and
only accepts certain photographic ID, then they will be tested to see that this is being done.
It is the Authority’s view that a Challenge 25 age verification policy should be adopted as
best practice with only nationally accredited photo ID being acceptable as proof of age. Any
premises found to be selling alcohol not in accordance with their own adopted age
verification policy will be committing an offence which could lead to enforcement action
being taken to prevent a reoccurrence.

On 25" October 2018 Thames Valley Police completed a test purchase process at Best One during
which the Designated Premises Supervisor Mr Parmar sold a bottle of Bulmers Cider abv 4.0% to a
female of seventeen years of age. Mr Parmar was issued with a fixed penalty notice for £90.00 for the
offence committed which is understood to have been paid.

Thames Valley Police (TVP) are now also aware that a consequent re test purchase conducted by
Trading standards officers on the 18" February 2019 resulted in a second failure leading to a fifteen
year old being able to purchase alcohol..

It is of serious concern that the premises licence holder/ designated premises supervisor Mr Parmar
having previously commited the offence of selling alcohol to a person under 18 years of age has failed
to react in an appropriate manner and address this situation at the premises.

This not only led to a second test purchase failure in February 2019 but also the realisation that a
number of rudimentary expectations such as suitable training, refusals logs and alcohol sales
authorisations were not in place. (As cited within the Reading Borough Council inspection on 20"
March 2019).

For these reasons TVP strongly believe that this premises is clearly undermining rather than
supporting the Licensing objectives and we fully endorse the review of this premises licence
undertaken by the Reading borough Council Chief Inspector of Weights and Measures.

TVP would urge the Licensing Sub-Committee to seriously consider the options available to them
within this process and we fully support the recommendation which has been made in relation to the

revocation of this licence in order to ensure that the licensing objectives are promoted: with specific
regard to the prevention of children from harm.

Appendices
APPENDIX TVPI - Statement of PC Wheeler relating to Test Purchase on 25" October 2018
APPENDIX TVP2 - Copy of fixed penalty notice issued to Mr Parmar (DPS)

APPENDIX TVP3 - Images of the alcohol sold to the child on 25™ October 2018 by Mr Parmar.

Page 33



APPENDIX TVP1 MG11

Witness Statement Page 1 of 1

Criminal Procedure Rules, r 16.2; Criminal Justice Act 1967, s.9

URN:

Statement of: Simon Wheeler

Age if under 18 (if over insert “over 18”):  Over 18 Occupation: Police Constable 5787

This statement (consisting of ...... 1. Pages(s) each signed by me) is true to the best of my knowledge and belief and | make it
knowing that, if it is tendered in evidence, | shall be liable to prosecution if | have wilfully stated in it, anything which | know to be

false, or do not believe to be true.

Signature: Simon Wheeler Date: 29/10/2018

I am Police Constable 5787 WHEELER of the Thames Valley Police, currently stationed at Reading
Police Station.
On Thursday 25" October 2018 at approximately 1941 hours | was on duty and in plain clothes using

call sign EA62. At this time | was conducting a test purchase operation in relation to the sale of alcohol to
children under the age of 18 at BEST ONE, NIRE ROAD, READING, BERKSHIRE.

At this time | entered the store alone and observed a member of staff working behind the till whom | now
know to be Tajiender Singh PARMAR.

Approximately thirty seconds after | had entered the store the child test purchaser identified as YP/02 (a
female whom was seventeen years of age) entered the shop with the intention of purchasing alcohol.

| was stood within the store in close proximity to them for the purpose of observing any sales that take
place and to provide welfare and safety assistance.

YP/02 was observed by me to select and purchase a single bottle of BULMERS cider with an abv of
4.0% from PARMAR without being asked his age or for any identification.

YP/02 then left the shop with the alcohol at which point | followed her out and once outside | took control
of the alcohol and photographed the bottle as evidence of the sale.

These images can be identified as SDW/1 — Image of BULMERS sold by PARMAR at BEST ONE, NIRE
ROAD, READING on 25-10-18.

| then returned to the shop with Richard French from Reading Borough Council where | informed
PARMAR that | was a Police Officer that he had failed a test purchase procedure and sold alcohol to a
person under the age of 18.

I cautioned PARMAR due to the offence committed and with the intention of issuing (if suitable) a fixed
penalty notice.

PARMAR replied “I ADMIT | DID IT THINKING BACK, BUT | WAS THINKING OF OTHER THINGS AND
| THOUGHT SHE HAD BEEN 25".

Having obtained a refund for the alcohol purchased during the testing process | performed a number of
checks via our force intelligence bureau and was able to confirm that PARMAR was eligible to receive a
fixed penalty notice for the offence of selling alcohol to a person under 18 years of age.

At 2007 hours | issued a fixed penalty for this offence reference 0438030095422518.

These are my original notes completed at 1820 hours on 29" October 2018.

Signature: Simon Wheeler Signature Witnessed by:  N/A

Page 34

12/2012




APPENDIX TVP3

SDW/1 — Image of BULMERS sold by PARMAR at BEST ONE, NIRE ROAD, READING on
25-10-18.

Page 35



APPENDIX PN-3

Name of Officer J'S CHAMPEAU
Type of Application Review of Premises Licence - Licensing Act 2003
Name of Premises Best One
Address 1a Nire Road
Reading
RG4 5L.T
DATE 3 June 2019

Content of Application:
The application is for the review of a premises licence in respect of the

above mentioned premises. The application has been submitted by the
Trading Standards Service (Chief Inspector of Weights and Measures) who
are a named responsible authority in the Licensing Act 2003.

Licensing Officer’s Comments:

The Licensing Authority - in its role as a Responsible Authority - fully support
the application for the review of the premises licence for Best One at 1a
Nire Road, Reading.

The premises licence holder has been in place since September 2017 and
has therefore had considerable time to ensure that all required checks and
procedures are in place to protect the young form illegal sales. In October
2018 the premise was test purchased by Thames valley police they sold
alcohol to an under aged person. This failure should have indicated to the
premise licence holder that there was a serious problem with the premises
and that the procedures to protect the young from underage sale were not
working.

In February 2019 some four months after the October 2018 test purchase
failure, the premises failed again, selling alcohol to a 15 year old, it is clear
that any improvements made by the premises licence holder during the
previous 4 months had not worked.

In March 2019 a licensing officer carried an inspection of the premises and
found a number of deficiencies, some of which show that the two test
purchase failures had done little to improve the compliance to the premise
licence requirement’s. A copy of this letter is attached to the trading
standards review application as Appendix 1.

Legislation, Case Law and Licensing Act 2003 Guidance

1.1 It should be noted that paragraph 51 of the Licensing Act 2003 states
that a review is of the premises licence and not the premises licence
holder. Therefore the activities that have been carried on in accordance, or
not in accordance, with a licence are what should be considered when
determining a review application.

1.2 The Secretary of State’s Guidance to the Licensing Act
2003 (April 2018) also has three paragraphs that we would
like to bring to the Committee’s attention in respect of
reviews and enforcement action:

Page 36



11.10 Where authorised persons and responsible authorities
have concerns about problems identified at premises, it is
good practice for them to give licence holders early warning
Fof their concerns and the need for improvement, and where
possible they should advise the licence or certificate holder
of the steps they need to take to address those concerns. A
failure by the holder to respond to such warnings is
expected to lead to a decision to apply for a review.

11.18 However, where responsible authorities such as the
Ipolice or environmental health officers have already issued
warnings requiring improvement - either orally or in writing -
that have failed as part of their own stepped approach to
address concerns, licensing authorities should not merely
repeat that approach and should take this into account when
considering what further action is appropriate.

Page 37



1)

2)

11.25 Reviews are part of the regulatory process
introduced by the 2003 Act and they are not part of
criminal law and procedure. There is, therefore, no reason
why representations giving rise to a review of a premises
licence need be delayed pending the outcome of any
criminal proceedings. Some reviews will arise after the
conviction in the criminal courts of certain individuals, but
not all. In any case, it is for the licensing authority to
determine whether the problems associated with the
alleged crimes are taking place on the premises and
affecting the promotion of the licensing objectives.

Summary

In summary, the premises has:

On more than one occasion failed a test
purchase;

Been subject to a licensing inspection after the two
failed test purchases and found none compliant with the
Licensing Act 2003.

Page 38




APPENDIX PN-4

Best One Shop
1a Nire Road
Lower Caversham
READING
RGA SLT
30 May 2019
fFor the attention of
The Chief Inspector of Weights & Measures
READING BOROUGH COUNCIL
Dear Sir/Madam,

1 am writing to you with reference to the proposed Licence Review Notice that was received at the
above detailed shop on the 7 of May 2019. | would like to assure you that | have taken this notice extremely
seriously and taken immediate action to rectify the situation.

I am a small local shop keeper and have experienced difficulties employing reliable staff.
| have one person working for me on a full time basis (Mr Gurung).

The shop opens at 7.00am and closes at 10.00pm. The Licence covers sales until 11.00pm, but the shop is always
closed by 10.15pm at the latest. Mr Gurung starts work when the shop opens, then takes a break at 11.00am for four
hours, before recommencing his duties at 3.00pm.

1 had employed a young lady on a part time basis to cover his break. | was happy to be able to offer her {(Ms Cupido),
an opportunity to earn a part time income, but unfortunately this decision has had disastrous consequences that |
am now dealing with. | have genuinely learnt from what has happened, in the hardest possible way and | am truly
sorry for the mistake that was made. | am not in any way trying to pass the blame, however, | did feel | had left my
shop in good, safe hands. | never foresaw an incident like this happening.

My shop was the subject of an armed robbery in October of last year and this crime sent me into a state of
depression. | already had ‘money worries’, and my debts have increased as a result of this.

| found it very hard to cope. | had nobody to speak to and had to face everything alone. It has been an extremely
challenging time and | remain very anxious about my substantial debt.

| now enforce the ‘Challenge 25’ rule at all times, and ensure that without identification, no alcohol, cigarettes or
tobacco are sold. If any member of my staff does not enforce this procedure, then they will face instant dismissal.

1 confirm that the perpetrator has been dismissed from my shop.

Unfortunately, whilst | believe that Ms Cupido is a decent individual, | realise now that she was not taking her
responsibility seriously. | feel she had lost interest in her job and was purely coming into work for the money.
Obviously this is unacceptable. She also had some strong opinions and tried to overrule me on accasions and this
was inappropriate. My work comes first. My job and my shop are my life.

| have retrained Mr Gurung and made adjustments to the running of my shop.

If | lose my license, { stand to lose everything. This is because | am in debt to people who lent me so much money to
buy this shop in the first place. The license the shop holds is its strength.
| can honestly assure you that we never sell alcohol, cigarettes or tobacco to any customer under the age of 18.

The whole Amersham Road Community is my witness. They all know and trust me. They know | am a conscientious,
caring man. | myself have an 18 year old son who I have supported and encouraged in the sport that he is passionate
about. He currently plays Cricket for Middlesex, Northampton and Berkshire. | practise and encourage a healthy life
style and like nothing better than to see young people achieve their goals in life.

| understand that as the owner of this small business, the actions of any/all of the staff employed by me, are
ultimately my responsibility. | acknowledge and accept that a serious mistake was made, but please may | reassure
you that this was a mistake, albeit a very serious one.

The Amersham Road Estate is a challenging area in which to run a shop. Some customers can be aggressive and
confrontational. There have been occasions when | have had altercations with young people whom | have challenged
over their age. This has never deterred me. | always adhere to the ‘No 1.D. No Sale’ rule regardless of the reaction it

Page 39



sometimes triggers. Although some of the people that frequent the shop are difficuit customers (mostly men,
ranging from late teens to maybe 40 years old), the majority of them are very friendly and kind and | feel they treat
me as they would a member of their own family. I have had general support from these ‘friends’ of mine, who have
told me to stay strong and that they will back me up. | feel blessed to have such lovely customers.

| do accept responsibility for the mistake that was made by Ms Cupido, but want to assure you that she did receive
appropriate training before | even considered leaving her alone to serve customers.

We serve on average 120 - 150 customers each day. Mainly the same people from the local neighbourhood, but
sometimes we see new faces. They come here for an array of different services/products.

We have an ATM machine which is regularly used.

Some of our customers are elderly and/or disabled and | feel having a convenient store at the heart of the
community is invaluable to them. In fact, | would 80 as far as to say that some people have come to rely solely on

Best One Shop. | made the decision to sell basic groceries like bread and milk with very little mark up to encourage
my customers to buy locally. Obviously this helps them and encourages them into the shop.

My customers use my PayPoint facility regularly to pay bills and top up electric keys etc. Approximately

is put through each week. | have to pa-each week to rent this machine. This service costs me
money, as opposed to earning any income from it. ! realise It’s not compuisory to offer this facility but it saves
customers having to walk 15/20 minutes to the next closest shop. | truly do have the best interest of my customers
at heart. Many of the elderly still like to buy a daily newspaper. | don’t sell enough to qualify for commission from
these sales, but again, decided to continue to offer them. The suppliers were reluctant to continue to deliver to me
due to the location of the shop and the value of revenue from newspaper sales, but after a lengthy discussion, |
managed to persuade them to do so which | considered to be a small victory.

Please may | request that you take these factors into consideration when reviewing my license?

The revenue from the sale of alcohol forms a large part of my takings and without this, trading will almost definitely
become non viable.

My decision to enforce ‘Challenge 25’ is working well. It's amazing how many young people do appear to be 25 years
old, but when asked for 1.D. it shows them to be considerably younger. | have found that customers are a lot happier
to be asked to prove their age when asked if they are 25 years old. Perhaps young pecple of say 19/20 felt personally
offended before, whereas now they fully accept that they appear to be less than 25.

t travel from each and every day.
| am totally committed to my business. | have made a conscious effort to create a friendly atmosphere and have, as |
said, buiit a cordial relationship with the community.

1 am on first name terms with the majority of my regulars. It’s heart warming when someone comes in smiling and
says “Hey Sonny, how are you today?” This is exactly what | have strived to achieve.

t have many young children who come in to buy drinks and confectionary, it’s lovely to see them.

Please know that | would never, ever condone the sale of alcohol, cigarettes or tobacco to any person under the age
of 18, it is totally against all of my beliefs. I like to see young people participating in sport and looking after
themselves, not smoking and drinking.

Yes, there have been occasions when under age teenagers have attempted to make illegal purchases here but the
answer has always been the same. No I.D., no sale.

I cannot emphasise enough, how genuinely sorry | am for this terrible oversight.
| am absolutely distraught that this has happened in my shop. The shop that | love, the business that | cherish.

Thank you for taking the time to read my letter/email. Please feel free to contact me on 07939 940444 should you
have any queries or questions. | look forward to hearing from you in due course, and again, would like to thank you
in anticipation of your consideration in this regard.

Respectfully yours

Mr TS Parmar (proprietor of Best One Shop, Nire Road, Caversham, Reading RG4 5LT)

Page 40




Narancic, Peter

—

From: Licensing

Sent: 13 May 2019 07:13

To: Masson, Clyde; Narancic, Peter; Smalley, Robert
Subject: FW: Public notice

©

Kind Regards,

Ms Leigh Ingram

Team Leader - Business Support Team|

Regulatory Services | Directorate for Economic Growth & Neighbourhood Services
Email: leigh.ingram@reading.gov.uk

A :
&€} Reading
Working better with you

From: Tajiender Singh Parmar [mail« SNSRI

Sent: 12 May 2019 20:15
To: Licensing
Subject: Public notice

This is an EXTERNAL EMAIL. STOP. THINK before you CLICK links or OPEN attachments.
To : Mr Richard french,
Dear, sirfmadam,

Due to the circumstances,I would like to inform you that, I have taken this matter very seriously therefore I
have had to let my staff go due to the accident,I do not wanna loose my license & shop.Also as a business
we are promoting under age sales to the community,We also have changed our display format un the shop,
we also now wear logo printed T- shirt & poster in the shop door the poster you put up outside the the
teenager had ripped down I have steck in the front door of.I would like to reach out to you on how we could
make our promotion bigger & also please could you guide us with better training, I want to be un the good
book of the law,! like would like to meet you person. Once again I’'m very sorry please forgive me for last
time I will never repeat mistakes again,I want say my shop license.once again forgive me I can’t forgive me
myself. I hope to hear form you soon in a positive approach kind regards

Mr Tajiender Singh parmar

Best one shop 1A nire road
Caversham Reading RG4 5LT

Page 41



ALV G 0 g B
e L e e
LR T e




@ APPENDIX PN-5

Narancic, Peter

Sent: 15 May 2019 '17:43

To: Licensing
Subject: Information about best one Nire Rd - fwd to RS by cIm

This is an EXTERNAL EMAIL. STOP. THINK before you CLICK links or OPEN attachments.

Good evening

I’'m name is Zoe parr, I live atfManagua Close, I’ve been using best one on nire road since 2002 I’ve never
had a problem there. Since the new management started it has been a much better and welcoming shop to go
in to. I understand that the staff didn’t ID someone but [ know it not any excuse but the shop has had a lot
going no. There was the robbery at knife point and then another robbery by someone that was working there
at the time to. The owner has worked so hard to make sure it goes back to a welcoming and safe place to go
to. I 'think it’s unfair to take someone’s license after because of one mistake. I've been informed that on the
day of the person not being ID there was another customer behind the one being served at the time kept
saying hurry up hurry up they were very abrupt in their speaking.

The owners are amazing they always help if you need anything in the shop, they help you find things you
need, if you are unsure on prices they will inform you on that also. They always ask how you are and how
your days been very catchy , which is very lovely to know you are that welcomed in to your local shop.
Please don’t let these people loose their licenses. We love the shop how it is. The people that live here
doesn’t want it any other way. Everyone has made a mistake now and then the people are ok no one is hurt

everyone is fine. Please rethink.
Thank you for taking your time to read this.
Kind regards

Zoe parr

Click here to report this email as spam.

Page 43



(4/

Narancic, Peter

From: sharlane downes -

Sent: 18 May 2019 20:19
To: Licensing
Subject: Best one nire road

This is an EXTERNAL EMAIL. STOP. THINK before you CLICK links or OPEN attachments.
To whome it may concern

[ am writing this email regarding the licence review of best one store Amersham road in which a minor has
been servered alcohol in my knolegde having lived here for 15 years and my local shop that they would not
sell to under age people I have seen people been refused items due to no 1.d I have also been aprroched
often my minors around the corner asking to get them goods as they cannot be served which I myself would
never do either I do know that there has been a new member of staff working there and Maybe it could be
her that did not ask for id as I no for a fact that the other staff members always ask for ID

Thank you for taking the time to read this

Sharlane Downes
managua close
Reading

Rg4 51x

Click here to report this email as spam.

Page 44



Q-ly

Narancic, Peter

A

Sent: 21 May 201 :

To: Licensing

This is an EXTERNAL EMAIL. STOP. THINK before you CLICK links or OPEN attachments.

My name is Craig spicer , been living at 30 honey meadow close in caversham for 19 years ,
been coming into the best one shop on bird road caversham rg4 5lt and have know Parma for 2
years and have witnessed him give great service and has a great attitude and | have witnessed
him ID many people in the evening past 7. He is a very honest man and please support him to
carry on with his licence. In my eyes he is a great individual. If you need any more information
contact me on_King regards Craig.

Sent from my iPhone

Pade 45



0

) W‘f udme. ;s fm’ ij_ﬂf@o ) eus ﬁm]
N Y adaﬁ ﬂ: «;ﬂd fu/lu

50 $mle T'am Laugf_grwtl :}\45 STLOfG being ely
—weltaut o —Lacry gud by stURF ;HA.HZL wWE WQ(L__ 46
- urﬁemﬂ\r o2l time e SEM ij 2ud evaploye
- 4!‘de {uﬂ‘l'oMDFS \f@(\\l u/d f‘:lj é_l C/O UM&JEEMJ
._ﬂ&tmmw = y 3N é&.-%zﬂdlg&l v

~ other

\Azzi;;__ﬁlawt/ 72 P@J hff dowT sht i dowr -

~

\f}eufﬁ S c{d% :
D

ok

fou waly CN(:/Z&’W‘*V'\
_B“_QI L(Z S

— = — —_—— ——— e — e ——
et e st ot e o
— e — — — —— e

_Page 46




OV i@ p O N -

BAYY  HMaln 4y oL 30N ras T’:.cl:ml_’_(_l\

ML SINCE UE 1o S G e GrASE  STORE
LR (O (LesNO. -

- ME i ity 10 rVE
WA T Ak REGULEYIED ek ME  oof S
PN LMLy e O,

" nis EmPLoyees n({
XLiE UMD S D N &,

———

DEVAL  CeAEN L -

LANEES TN O SOULIPN

Page 47 =



ey  cenlinenlt o m a3 F#
elehic amnd/ g’ tocts” a ety

- A

| - LS ATLAE DS T




0
—@zn‘f:a@ Nite fod

CHee E sedd be ﬂpaﬂ:
ot local Slxo{o 43&1(’ one) b

60 : (o3 (of‘ Oé {Zzop Lﬁ. MM&J OvAOI

(hef fef mLa ne cle
j e !

-‘7‘:‘_ B e e—.—-—i L‘Mﬂ& G(dc el d | {’-\u
Shop op 3 fja“:q e.s.renl;-cls. | j -
I | pofrur  hes N
weleo e Wy I«\g_\ A‘lwfa ;

_ Seade . - €& t—OmJA ke u-e% &'u( [-p fee L.w\,

leove becawsse o(' o Mo of SW be,e«

Page 49




__Q-rﬂ(‘l’ &Mmmrz[
Ses Yo
¢ __&_fw Vice .

e



MJ_‘-_. Amectowm Road --f~~—-—- o

~ Loam o fulhe' Stom Tha  enstde T e

— Qe B the Ute of e caglake 02 o
Todher the SwaR 1S Very et A
Fhe oCoamimunitsyy And Me Sowdimes

_&E\sax__\\L&s%m%_s._u@;L Wi\ bvey =

me m__m&wm Led .

Lo, Lawm niok c\oSe A\ s\ugp_go_,ta_ie.__
B, U8 \u\\l.\ be *&‘({‘m%a_g\gg_ a sl

o poole HaP and Zoppery, . M@-_.“}

= - ——— — ey
»
—— - —— —a —— —e  — —_— e —— _— S

Page 51






NAMT  ASpny R2EnFEY,
_ J:nrN‘LM_*KA—ﬂ—u O VS | CAVOLS A

~<ARS OB Lz,_éér—mu@,___
JA NIAE Loy fz-'dLLgL_‘[ eSS~ A L(_@&A,.. |
Ao | Howve uy*_;_ouxltul @i&‘ﬁ\f ;
e ML PAfuan 1% WNEw Vdrd BF o
Tras Gstve qufmm- L S1Aann g |
Shofkezfe " Mgy, my Friend ppe.,
He IS hmmflﬂqﬁ AL, Al Cree
er HO (oStomers™ LA, qid He
WIk Dever Jo Q‘w*"kt»j__} S\b‘\'jr B
F Hrye Seen e ASULey 10" e e
{me, He Crew Ok pe [Pecs Tlnat
Dy Ln (Mon. Me . bed Not qvw,&\@f&
hecbuse frg 2 (S ol

. /’F’Mh ST @d___ e
__l_bex:_»_@k el = 28) ;{ Siteyg wuL llep\wn

(Ero 13 Lsonl wlﬁ_mﬂmﬂﬂ 4

_Redon®, 14 A)ins Lo An

| Yoo Ne<o Maf'
O~ Qlbove. Nwwher:

— (ﬁj\ T 1

- I STy S
R #6;5,%4_ %5,_\ FE A

Page 53 —




4 ) % bove  J& 4
ytw e, My Pedmar

J/Y\/l Cj\n\f')'\l/\—(_/{\l'

V'
0f KU? e e Bad
oy Sct hne  radur fiem I Ay

NUv_er IV oA VLAY

Minng | /(*\47 YLV

iﬂilr Lwﬂiii 4 iiiJ»\u‘.

Page 54



o . F\MSS’W

_ﬁ.h\m\ an Wi &wop (@7 @Cﬂv\\mum‘
A= A QL,:DQ/ chdd @S o kol . (N\O:,\hj

O o ci\)x/crzk e =WV WVaVaw 4 VAV = % Ver R

Page 55



©

Te A (ocAc STUQ’S, 18 ~6T  Keasomag e o
chw\.@ druce.u.{‘;; ng OoNvE pAaWnTAake . 'ﬂ.ﬁ_g ;SA

Nl )M(cﬂzTQr:r b fee cwl Ceco Cormmun Ty

T e i &

Page 56



Mxe RaRsE gy 4
Y aAve WveS mong voa

NI ¢ ) s Qﬂ\!i'ng.ha\,, e

10 YEAMS Ar»ave MR PRRAaL Fon
2 vemas . \vTwa- TIME L MAYE deYer Scéo om 13eAn

oF pag
Eﬁﬁﬁm.luﬁmyxﬂu)_d_ﬁ WAL NG I ST A en g Tle Syof

M2 Prmak den Mg SSTAFE ALNAYS ASe Faa 1. D MG, ParPLe
e _

________ Ay, Aicarior. sa_ UecaaBT(S

Page 57




@ S

Rest one  _wice. Do(, D,Gq SCVU

AS For as mme anal W‘:S——Qc‘m“ = o il
Concerned bestene on —vifte el eo
close ool csese pProolems  Eor cack.
CEC peopl . Pese. itk Pagsico)  anol
aAVSo ek _LL\AQSS Qs?ecn.c\.\:y. as Ewne
necfest. Shcp ool be jaminsS goas
LJC.LE_Vlah_Q‘Y\QL_':_ Domiad malte e
extremalny A icullE o Qe ks c;nOI
preces, Enat wle weeol,

MO pacmm A Wes been bhe lgést: —f
Sp keeper woe \Wowoe \Acol_ arcveeno! hege |
especsilyy eibh bte cgpe o beens
e have Greamncl here , he copes /olesis
(LA 5N i!ﬁ.%_ﬂ\_)_&%m_'—ﬁie/l,\ inaolee!, a.no!
e vas been Hc;im‘-j. =N lzl’ob]gle_
In_Hdae Shp becs.se S BTy, Lwe o
respecktsS ecvemon® Anel kreats éye,y%
ene oS Ca . —alS , 7

T w—eanicd Le o gresxt ORS
o lose mo paime, Pleuse olane

| Close cur  Shap

NARS E<=snnS




G

Wy wane & sane, ¢ tive A rancge

Ylofe | o o
1

The best One l.J e locat ShoP
M aun A tus M—Ht—H’ f[}zm@( _
&% ai"””"f‘ty_ Kooot . Dpnis omd  Sepirces. The pa—
dt.z_ﬂc.__&/_na_ N a gfa.ée_ _____ Man emot g%J

o i\.e(_cém.__gau_ Con  tee o &Mgme
amo oM fhey Lould Sy 5 geot Atiag s

Abpyr  tad _:ﬂ)aﬁ______-- . S
B R4 pJrRe F@c«d

s 14

Page 59 — - —




\/\u_\\ A s l{.)ﬂﬁ‘\a"lé | L‘L_QE‘ 3
LOALE . o

\ ccve o '/}T"'\:S SY‘Q? M&_-i‘%/\\

oo Yhe cuuaank SO Q.(‘[i\ Sime, YA |

ol Ut A A rmassiue hole | r\_ﬂi}@%ni‘d‘,_,
be,a,w@gt\;gf

) ke —
— = E— —




Qebedk Cox .&u*—«\ﬁ u?( B

aeeAll.:q CeyegSapq L i
“ pa(r-«cr bed ope Shep Vo e @oao\ QC.E&SL-'Y— :

| heve beew Cfmeaucf_A He q't_f br oues %\gl A\
M podimef IR ﬂ( QLY.QJ_S_“%MQ owd\ (_aw..n\)m&u-wj O\Nd\ ey
Q@F&glom:d s r\n.f e‘\‘z_}l& Aoad m“ AL PefS 12) La@zks

Cieense A M- grne pore C@.M?q, R D
Z{M /5/.6_5 i a

o Page 61




®

W vome S Bewed,

 egldert W mecdow wav ol +o begh one

 hove been g thig Slop Lov eanly tuwd Neas

Qe Lo wove Thas ghor 1S Vovn onvamign

COwd VUl 0w bu W \pwl, bave Sear oviey Has

~ Huer Some Aifforr) Qevt cwmd on prepting The (lellovees
T beve Wi Some (oahmens, ana have asleod Lov i ol
on HaSe nsdences

) el eu .
S\é'égi % @MOS_\C{H - ——Q@LD/_,_____

— - e e .

Page 62

T - e R e e i Sl A e L




@M\' Cl.n, a  oug _\Qc_qys- Sbb& \Nul_a

ety 4‘%‘”“‘*“6.. Yo n Lol
o S&r&a)_ ) O o oﬁ:\_uf\gs.s:&:‘n‘é o

- e bk ~ 30 e |
) L \Wo K,JL&Q_.__S‘\Q va_&.g&éq_a




o O YR N N R

ko oedk




L i Page 65




the Shop Keeper My O

Regr;{[% IC o5 19

Page 66




Z

Alice. Uoin
Nire Road , Caversham

o __¢mzu,;m c&\ this address since_ | woos bom
since + have turned 18, e workers al

. osked for 10. ThQu oxe SNOYO

g,md_{;n ﬂ% . Aot of peOple comktJi {Om(:fdlf

—Shop a5 it e to whore uved £

o um\dmm 0Ok WR \w\ud NG S
When inove pruiousw beony (n B gnap 4 |

- S¥ peGpu tug; ANl or tomcmfﬂg m Kt o

e ey M&&tm::@__ 10_,..b2\_Qt€__ |
asl fOF (& aomm BNV ) N ﬂﬂ\%hl

KOP e Shops Geopse!




Sedn Nt D e Mo vy GRS R4 SDR

Te Ligod  on Jew M rag o Wiy For 2% YouS T'we Beer\

Coq“\&_ b bnis SkeP Fr okt |0 oF ‘e

awd Tve /\.C\./Q(‘

geé"‘ W\-y Prob(éMg N\K PDJ"_Q;—'_ l's o 9&4&(64&0/\ cu\d :I_’UQ hever

Seen oAy \)N)\Zf‘b-ﬁi Se,&\/\‘;? o oaY Fer \Uroqg clomg

Bstone iy o Qooo\ Ster  ond Gea) Reo bt
; ork
Lo 165719 = ~ -

———

Page 68




TAR Michgon Ly .QGY(\S_.ﬁ
Liveo, e 2—’—*9@__1- |

SheQ Munf\b«v-_ 1

Z’X;&M\ My ORRoNAR Smcr_ 201 Aml , Nevee
h&&i Sean W\vv\_\ U\QLQOO\L He.
_(L.rc 4 fesgeckeoh e m_tay_m

jk 1&[05/10\'-‘:\’

p .

Page 69




-—-"

Move Lusn o LS Aren foR LS NealS
F-"\QD#_J-;{QLJL_._OSC_,D JJ:‘iLs_ SHop. SinCE 1T OPEN
Aun THE S-"nr'F' Dme:js__Qg__QEQQL& FoR

&5_____ = CART AN v:xﬁ LD
R LAST L THOOUT 1T == m ke
Qaue GWCE Aon 1T LakeE e Aare. ol
CHE  TEAM  WWE nESEN s S
o R ST o. . -2 & I f—{ﬁegp[&cQLES

Page 70







Page 72




!

L. Gen,s

R l;_g clos e _&Q{,\,—_ngi

‘Hsc. g@_};rﬂ"( _gao'ﬂ " N\;‘LM
B nNe arna 5 Q< nih

= \' )¢ {"Lu__é_d._ lf___d;u.

Page 73




SRCOL HERNTTs
aKHING Clole PGt SLE




> - _\s o }
50———%5-‘“—“@-%&——* e r——

S e R
R - ¥jespa. ﬂ?ﬁ




. S . Mansua. Clode_

T have Lived Rownd here for a long Eme
ond Sunny 1) one o bhe best Shep keepes bhals
been bhire! | have nee~  Seen hpm Sell anglbhig |
bo wnder 185, He always ask for 1A wwan e |

been In Hure. Hes A Kally Nice Man .

L ek g
 Tack . h@,f" | ——




A
QrS Neow) . The :gtqu
G Aliags pLobte B (ietocnn A~

__aad.__.grﬁ_iz__aceg:_el,o ) {—1_,1@\7
—mﬂ%mu_wme___
— Shrep sk T ne s de%__@.&:ggy

W e  Sunnd ,é‘n;c:.cn‘mq _L%ng/‘C
-NC_Oanmac 1S Q. Love,’u 5‘.%3 oy
_me R mu f"}’uLaue/\ Ma_g_c_b_m_q_

%10 annL o B Iqmr..(_o L PVPITJMOI
J hawe nNever wiitressas i

;////‘F/I/,r %t




T nCuse, teen | a.s,nc% s ShoP CoC oner

gg ¥Yraouyn  w\«e Yme of boSr one

._l_ A M\M oornch als (S
m (L'XY 3 15 CA\SQ!H 5; QY costapnred <
aa) o yery Vc.\ﬂi_hgm_:pofsef\ (o o TCANE M-I -1

st ane shog gm\ 10 o\ e '\‘\N\Q \hcme oW
\AE_Qounac o0k Qemmgm (s &\ap Lncwe nowee
O\

m

) e", ,
- e -
YU NS ..

1ad




MY Cee\ | 2 T

\S r\.ALQM_%LD:_GAi__%g;ua&_.._ ==
o _Jﬁ_\&_._ﬁh-.&%__cm&._&d%ﬂ— e N

S m_cjs e = . SN Us W U~ Y~ e G < ek ore o
_____..1_LE§A(._@:____A_QQQ.Q\.L_.”_._._ =




g

AM . BN\ WA CRAIREL sy
e wWely (o3 ol  \locaAl. SUe? o
AN CSTATR_ e S P wowoe Al STReL
o MAwras Lok A=l you  woelo Qe

O ll&n-ﬂ-:rt}r AND & ogoelT  Lass Foll —Ua

-

C oA ¢TY_-

AL A canPBo-(L “M—Q&CU}M L) | CAvlS AN
-0 -15




"A“.‘ g AN
\




9

Best ONe | -

hocol Store, veyy helpfru!l and
 Nonest. staec ™~

\/leu Folite

have seen thord @FUSQ,___ .
0 2e |l cigerates and doha]

o anyoal Loho does NOt hanve:
0O exen_LFiJ’l%LQm oIl encughry.

K woudd ke an acsolute disgrgce
Fofoux \OQCUL Sftore o clcse
A C the eptate. 1E

i)

D
«Q
(¢}
(e 0]
N

}




“/
 To  whem (& May _CanCemn.

Qﬁa L ot oo (s q- LmjaL local éhae
I M_Pﬁc)ym O\ catfonch CuSkOMY cex o
. ard #MWWM vestk - A((

_ Stag( are Cnen @mm% _Favmbb

ﬂ__;l.,i_.a,aa_u\ay_huk; olwaid s . ..QAJJ)Q‘@LMQL S
ol pudec ge 10l As muchas- ) a

SN En S as__an (AN 12| fu\CA’. CL“ rm(/-f
A ndOjSmeL H/tg \mtg)r BN /IR 4" \A/M/Y\(}\/
Co L.m/hl) )’Um ) '

0(\' COW¥
rl

Q,a\\th(chc lans
ﬁfadmﬂ\
230 DAL/

Page 83



o

VX t\jw w_ ":_\.S ch S _lwa aut
wua. - Qose, Hwo &\’o,gf‘_ S AW ﬂAAJ Shep

8 mw\.%ﬂ m _ D M
m@ Jm{“ %%m """ o
-
bone  Sean - FHhadk -H@E
A\\/\)IA\/S 1D. Sﬁ%&aﬁg,.m.ﬂ@clgw |
wﬁijL&Lm&sq;wm ; T

WE Do mm'wwwrﬁz_gxmi
THESE qu%5

Page 84




Maare 1s a4 | L g o

e M.O/DQADL Close Twe QP wasens  adde
£ g ‘@Ww.& \ dan %Mm . _ﬁuxﬂntg\

A Seds 2 Ougre OBk TR oS 6

Ao dos Gl alwoys | cerpecaed 2. obuged |
QCj,__g_'{E_ﬁr_ KUy Bus _CQ_W__  mowo N -




(Y\u nome 15 mence dok- | Lwe n Hqsnwﬁlécdod

Nee My loced Shop 1% @nend(m , o \peuh
- U\J.u woved bhevie Celb 2019 D endk o\ ake S oM |
wu up_onel dogether \ve rok seen o recyd) .

Al de VEKDH’S bo\\chSoe\(«eY Cond WS 1S H&

O Ly S oy m L NG SSLve U:)mwwf\u\’u {;LQ\(
\1CJ£,nCe \S qu«v\ouw\* to qunesﬁ r‘eQ\,\,\ oY
cusrormors (e dont O\fux&j M_pf'

Besy One .
LA Nive Reed .
cavesihcm RG L 5T
Lo newquas c\cse
Cok\/e(é)\ﬁm/\
GL.GLS
[Yo5-19.

Page 86




{v

L vhse RNods WP Ppeune. con <y {EaR= o
: A o &










Cocal Sho Ve poicke e

HQPP‘;} _C)J_Q{;ng{S | Woud o be verySad bo See

Close

4 V@V(% Conve,anl QQ( Cocal AN eo,

C_/\'\ns_l:n:gw \'_Cw’lpsj -

Qmﬂpvkcq Qiese
o S ihovnn ;

Ry s

Page 90



Z

Lm Andon| e (ved on ehs estede Sing.
1999 +hi5 Bhop 15 +he hoar+ o€ tho Communi} -
B\eHone who wWollS hese S Ve ang = -
Ne helocul 4TS BHOR can nof SAUt

—Poing LR Wit SefodiSe whotp +AS
-~ COMmINnIY has byid VP,

_.__._______.__________7_'?__..___._‘__.,____. . e
e —
bine close
RV £ I . e

Page 91




@ - Kicrea Tadudeen 13 acor

B Moagea close , R4, S

1. b bees L 5iag Rest One Shep o

[ Z MJM Lm-uf MP&E@!'
—Z._Jgﬂcf_w M _____

Q‘zgj !‘olimu S'J,n‘a OS¢ o5 f“'z_S'pmf- a— (S alwa

O'Sk_\% __...!!:15_. aé_ l - ‘ =77 ‘

Wal L.'J"l-(x'l L bey Rizz/on He s ASking for
-~

m:ﬂ L .[D. pot ory Motz as g ark OUe ]S’
d o Gouler costopre + Yl b -—

SQ‘_J-! Mj ‘. nlﬂn #f&__[bﬂa, oL }'4'4,9__[” . ‘:E ‘)GR_,

A__&IL_L;? L _-’/h. qoc 5 l:\/ ?a!.uou ~ oL M&
_%Qmu' [m Sver ”‘«- (e hole

Cmf)?m(,g_
agewe Cu b me— e Sal B st
LA nice Reel, Cavestarr BG4 SL’T’
B \ / -
DL:('\:'.’
ke : ; |5 os. |8

Page 92




M\-\ \'\\Kﬂgp@ Udﬁ-{‘ |~ S 3019

Me. CAlnec.
TR E DEEN A CoSTeMER T MK R SHOE

—SiucE HE BAS REEN OwmER 3 HAS BEEW S veay

_PlensAv S tebe FoLL iz m__r-L_ngLq\rARDmn A Le&q AL
AcTion Asmms.‘r AN G &:&/t‘h;_SALcc:r Agac\\oL
M& Beeny & tes form TONE

Page 93




" 5

A

fen _ﬁ,“ﬂv\ﬂlv!
Nire. A

Canver Shvown

L  cwm L Vi
_por A O\

- \_} = T
& 3 tvn
Covampan b _ena e  wam e

..J o

%‘
M%_-




o)

riun vavid unauto:aawatnomas—
Sent: 22 May 2019 12:01

To: Licensing

Subject: BESTONE ONE 1A NIRE ROAD CAVERSHAM RG45LT

P ersbar Reald
This is an EXTERNAL EMAIL. STOP. THINK before you CLICK links or OPEN attachments.

Dol T herag

Sent from Mail for Windows 10

HAVE BEEN LIVING IN CAVERSHAM FOR OVER 20 YEARS BE FORE NIRE ROAD SHOP . I HAVE SEEN LOTS OF CUMINGS
AND GOINGS OF PEOPLE EG CHANGING HANDS OF SHOP . BUT OVERALL MR PARMER HAS BEEN THE

BEST ONE NO PUN

Click here to report this email as spam.

The information in this e-mail is confidential to the intended recipient to whom it
has been addressed and may be covered by legal professional privilege and protected by
law. Reading Borough Council does not accept responsibility for any unauthorised
amendment made to the contents of this e-mail following its dispatch. If received in
érror, you must not retain the message or disclose its contents to anyone. Please
notify us immediately quoting the name of the sender and the addressee and then delete
the e-mail. Reading Borough Council has scanned for viruses. However, it is your
responsibility to scan the e-mail and attachments (if any) for viruses. Reading
Borough Council also operates to the Protective Document Marking Standard as defined
for the Public Sector. Recipients should ensure protectively marked emails and

2

Page 95



7

ERERES Original Message-----

> From: Beverley Brookes [W'

> Sent: 23 May 2019 16:11

> To: Licensing Maracva Cloce.

> Subject: Best One RG4 5LT 3

>

> This is an EXTERNAL EMAIL. STOP. THINK before you CLICK links or OPEN attachments.
>

>

>

> To whoever it may concern.

> Having recently read the notice displayed at the above mentioned shop, | felt compelled to
email you with my opinion of the shopkeeper, Mr Parmar.

> | have been living nearby in Managua Close since 2007 and have seen the shop change hands
many times.

> Of all the people that have run the store, | have to say that Mr Parmar is undoubtedly the
most respectful, helpful and kind person that | have come across.

> He has a strong sense of community spirit and | feel I’'m speaking on behalf of the
neighbourhood when | say how much he is ‘loved’ and appreciated.

> He remains calm and patient with a variety of different clientele and always has the time to
advise/assist when required.

> | was very sad to read that the shop had failed the alcohol test on two separate occasions.
> Clearly this cannot be disregarded.

> | can tell you that both my 18 year old son and my 20 year old daughter have both been
challenged on separate occasions by both Mr Parmar and another gentleman who frequently
works there.

> | truly don’t know if my words and thoughts will make any difference to the situation but |
would be most grateful if you could at least please consider the points I've raised at the time of
the review of his license.

> Please feel free to contact me by return of email, or by telephone on-
>

> Thank you for your time.
> Regards,

>

> Beverley Brookes

Page 96



m

‘8’“ (e,

(EC sHanm (7
OR

Ve Gy,

Rek & s ,2'995@(52




&

I Hele o wowld be ¢ ea! Sh
£ Hwn  mattzr Concluded it e Toce
OF’ IL’W LCQP\C/Q as k

essen trald  ang X Gery

[oss
/OPO/ULLQ 6.4_
F’UP /'/M /o
- 1 g ’ CQ/(
Mesdenfs agk visufors - baliewe [y
. s . '
not om(g I“/l@ Ot ¢ 61 bot /L/UL ‘M o
}'yzamﬂ one . Ofc e or. Gf

Page 98



ZHire (RO T

AEP DI &

= RoArrd € (AOSE EoA_

P

[ HPIE 7 ety L1V é

/4 yerns —
; eve BTN vSirve THIS ¢ Hop FON 2 verts
_ S0P P2

s Ao VE LI ey S  FOTC Tre
1CITP

et pPuil A0

o FE__VET

We ~ED THS S

= cupport /e LrRmMAA EsToNE

.
B A ey RoPp
rers rf 2t BEADING 30RO

I A A
<7 ~AUNCH -

o4 S oounNcl
7 6 MAT 79

-
[ceEP T SH0F cre™
L




dece\\e Couracds IOL}mg

AN ») oY~ el QY O al~igm TS lale al a e n 14 .S = . 3
3 a4
- " .
| A
Awwuk‘m_d@tq
] : ' Vi
- - k
[XY [/
( HE NOWE ACS NS OATY o NS - Y YA ST vy oMU
- -
- ! ) ryya - Al = . - CoRLS 14 ANy
0 - ()
[ A ey s Vals -\v M FYCYYY VAR QY ) ‘ b FLIALT LA ¢ ALk | L X o s™)
1 .

Page 100

-,




APPENDIX PN-6

oA f
€5 Reading

LICENSING ACT 2003 PREMISES LICENCE - PART A

Reading Borough Council being the Licensing Authority under the above Act,
HEREBY GRANT a PREMISES LICENCE as detailed in this licence.

[ Premises Licence Number | LP2002114

Premises Details
Trading name of Premises and Address

Best One

1a Nire Road

Caversham

Reading

RG1 5LT

Telephone Number | 0118 947 3515

Where the Licence is time limited the dates the Licence is valid
N/A

Licensable Activities
Licensable Activities authorised by the Licence

Sale of Alcohol by Retail - Off the Premises

Authorised Hours for Licensable Activities
The times the licence authorises the carrying out of licensable activities

Hours for the Sale by Retail of Alcohol

Monday from 0800hrs until 2300hrs

Tuesday from 0800hrs until 2300hrs

Wednesday from 0800hrs until 2300hrs

Thursday from 0800hrs until 2300hrs

Friday from 0800hrs until 2300hrs

Saturday from 0800hrs until 2300hrs

Sunday from 1000hrs until 2230hrs

Good Friday from 0800hrs until 2230hrs Christmas Day from 1200hrs until 1500hrs and
1900hrs until 2230hrs

Opening Hours
| N/A

LA_Premiseslicence Part A Page 101 Page 1 of 7



Alcohol

Where the licence authorises supplies of alcohol whether these are on and/or off
supplies

Sale of Alcohol by Retail - Off the Premises

Premises Licence Holder

Name, (registered) address of holder of premises licence

Name: Mr Tajender Singh Parmar
Address: 106 Springwell Road, Hounslow, TW5 98P

Additional Details

Name, address and telephone number of designated premises supervisor where
the premises licence authorises the supply of alcohol

Name: Mr Tajender Singh Parmar
Address: 106 Springwell Road, Hounslow, TW5 9BP

Designated Premises Supervisor

Personal Licence number and issuing authority of personal licence held by the
designated premises supervisor where the premises licence authorises the supply
of alcohol

Personal Licence Number: H04911
Issuing Authority: London Borough of Hounslow

This Licence shall continue in force from 01/08/2017 unless previously
suspended or revoked.
Dated: 1 September 2017

Head of Environment & Neighbourhood Services

@S@f{@a

LA_Premiseslicence Part A Page 102 Page 2 of 7




Annex 1

Mandatory Conditions

Supply of Alcohol

To be applied where a premises licence authorises the supply of alcohol

1 No supply of alcohol may be made under the premises licence:-

a) at a time when there is no designated premises supervisor in respect of
the premises licence, or

b) at a time when the designated premises supervisor does not hold a
personal licence or his personal licence is suspended

2 Every supply of alcohol made under the premises ticence must be made or
authorised by a person who holds a personal licence.

Film Exhibitions

To be applied only where a premises licence or club premises certificate
authorises the exhibitions of films

1 The admission of children to any exhibition of any film must be restricted in
accordance with section 20 of Part 3 of the Licensing Act 2003.

2 In the case of films which have been classified by the British Board of Film
Classification admission of children to films must be restricted in accordance
with that classification.

3 In the case of films which have not been classified by the British Board of Film
Classification, admission of children must be restricted in accordance with any
recommendation made by the Licensing Authority.

Door Supervisors

To be applied where a premises licence or club premises certificate includes a
condition that any person must be at the premises to carry out a security activity.
[Except premises with a premises licence authorising only plays or films or
premises used exclusively by a club].

1 Each individual present at the licensed premises to carry out a security activity
must be licensed by the Security Industry Authority.

LA_Premiseslicence Part A Page 103 Page 3 of 7




Responsible Drink Promotions (commencement date 01/10/2014)

1) The responsible person must ensure that staff on relevant premises do not carry out,
arrange or participate in any irresponsible promotions in relation to the premises.

2) In this paragraph, an irresponsible promotion means any one or more of the following
activities, or substantially similar activities, carried on for the purpose of encouraging
the sale or supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises—

(a) games or other activities which require or encourage, or are designed to require or
encourage, individuals to—

(i) drink a quantity of alcohol within a time limit (other than to drink alcohol sold or
supplied on the premises before the cessation of the period in which the responsible
person is authorised to sell or supply alcohol), or

(i) drink as much alcohol as possible (whether within a time limit or otherwise);

(b) provision of unlimited or unspecified quantities of alcohol free or for a fixed or
discounted fee to the public or to a group defined by a particular characteristic in a
manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;

(c) provision of free or discounted alcohol or any other thing as a prize to encourage or
reward the purchase and consumption of alcohol over a period of 24 hours or less in a
manner which carries a significant risk of undermining a licensing objective;

(d) selling or supplying alcohol in association with promotional posters or flyers on, or in
the vicinity of, the premises which can reasonably be considered to condone, encourage
or glamorise anti-social behaviour or to refer to the effects of drunkenness in any
favourable manner;

(e) dispensing alcohol directly by one person into the mouth of another (other than
where that other person is unable to drink without assistance by reason of disability).

LA_Premiseslicence Part A Page 104 Page 4 of 7



Supply of Tap Water (commencement date 01/10/2014)

1. The responsible person must ensure that free potable water is provided on request
to customers where it is reasonably available.

Age Verification Policy (commencement 01/10/2014)

1. The premises licence holder or club premises certificate holder must ensure that
an age verification policy is adopted in respect of the premises in relation to the sale
or supply of alcohol.

2. The designated premises supervisor in relation to the premises licence must ensure
that the supply of alcohol at the premises is carried on in accordance with the age
verification policy.

3. The policy must require individuals who appear to the responsible person to be
under 18 years of age (or such older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce
on request, before being served alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date
of birth and either—

(a) a holographic mark, or

(b) an ultraviolet feature.

Drink Measurements (commencement date 01/10/2014)
1. The responsible person must ensure that—

(a) where any of the following alcoholic drinks is sold or supplied for consumption on
the premises (other than alcohotic drinks sold or supplied having been made up in
advance ready for sale or supply in a securely closed container) it is available to
customers in the following measures—

(i) beer or cider: ¥2 pint;
(ii) gin, rum, vodka or whisky: 25 ml or 35 ml; and
(ifi) still wine in a glass: 125 m;

(b) these measures are displayed in a menu, price list or other printed material which
is available to customers on the premises; and

(c) where a customer does not in relation to a sale of alcohol specify the quantity of
alcohol to be sold, the customer is made aware that these measures are available.”

LA_Premiseslicence Part A Page 105 Page 5 of 7



Minimum Permitted Pricing (commencement 28th May 2014)

1. A relevant person shall ensure that no alcohol is sold or supplied for consumption on
or off the premises for a price which is less than the permitted price.

2. For the purposes of the condition set out in paragraph 1—

(a)“duty” is to be construed in accordance with the Alcoholic Liquor Duties Act 1979;

(b)“permitted price” is the price found by applying the formula—

P =D + (DxV)

where—

(i) P is the permitted price,

(i1) D is the rate of duty chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the duty were
charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol, and

(iii) V is the rate of value added tax chargeable in relation to the alcohol as if the
value added tax were charged on the date of the sale or supply of the alcohol;

(c) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in
force a premises licence—

(i) the holder of the premises licence,

(ii) the designated premises supervisor (if any) in respect of such a licence, or

(iii) the personal licence holder who makes or authorises a supply of alcohol under
such a licence;

(d) “relevant person” means, in relation to premises in respect of which there is in
force a club premises certificate, any member or officer of the club present on the
premises in a capacity which enables the member or officer to prevent the supply in

question; and
(e) “valued added tax” means value added tax charged in accordance with the Value

Added Tax Act 1994

3. Where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of paragraph 2 would (apart from
the paragraph) not be a whole number of pennies, the price given by that sub-
paragraph shall be taken to be the price actually given by that sub-paragraph rounded
up to the nearest penny.

4. (1) Sub-paragraph (2) applies where the permitted price given by Paragraph (b) of
paragraph 2 on a day (“the first day”) would be different from the permitted price on
the next day (“the second day”) as a result of a change to the rate of duty or value
added tax.

4. (2) The permitted price which would apply on the first day applies to sales or
supplies of alcohol which take place before the expiry of the period of 14 days
beginning on the second day.

LA_Premiseslicence Part A Page 106 Page 6 of 7




Annex 2

Conditions Consistent with the Operating Schedule

Annex 3

Conditions attached after a hearing by the Licensing Authority

Annex 4
Plans

As attached plan dated June 2011

LA_Premiseslicence Part A Page 107 Page 7 of 7



‘ 4 APPENDIX PN-7

-3
q g Sl  VERY
/ \ [ \)
’/‘ - =
-7, -/‘ ey
\ " -
- ‘/’ ".
A - ) T A P
- - A i e s
<N "._.»* ol il

A o
ol
v'ql
g ] -
1 [ -3
| o e i
= | o zid o ~ oG K
e - VA
- .= ' " 5 Yoo
] o -~ A
- = \
— =" g

1 - "-. \
| i S e LA
- -_'—'-"J"‘. -
P AN\
r i
_,11' [ i N ( \.\ \
R'-I" i \ ) - \ A
\ s A 4 A

o
o 4 A
gl l\-\..\_ A
L7
o e £ ‘-.
. 2T . A~
b

# o
Ly = i it

i - b
i Rl L
B e b

""' E isr /}

1

L ,

3]

© Ordnance Suney

iShare printing Readin
Scale: 1:1417 & 9

Borough Council

Working better with you
Printed on: 2/6/2019 at 13:40 PM © Crown copyright and database rights 2019 Ordnance Survey 100019672

Page 108



	Agenda
	2 APPLICATION FOR THE REVIEW OF A PREMISES LICENCE - BEST ONE
	BEST ONE APPENDICES PN1


